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PRESIDENT’S
MESSAGE

DAVID 
GERALD J.
FOUNDER, PRESIDENT & CEO

Dear Members and Investors

The theme for my message this year is “Thriving in the Next Normal’’ but such is the 
speed with which the world is changing, it could easily have been “Thriving in Yet 
Another New Normal’’ or even “Thriving in the Next New Normal’’. 

I am reminded that last year’s “new normal’’ was living in the midst of Covid-19; this 
year, as we emerge from the shadow of the pandemic, we have to ask: what does 
next year’s “new normal’’ look like?
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As I write this, financial markets are gripped 
with rising inflation and interest rate worries. 
All the world’s major central banks, starting 
with the US Federal Reserve and the Bank of 
England but with the exception of the People’s 
Bank of China and the Bank of Japan, have 
been aggressively raising interest rates to 
combat inflation that has been aggravated by 
the war in Ukraine and supply chain constraints 
caused by Covid.

This in turn has brought selling pressure to bear 
in most risky assets and raised the spectre of 
a global recession. Indeed, the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF) in early October 2022 
warned that colliding pressures from inflation, 
war-driven energy and food crises and sharply 
higher interest rates were pushing the world to 
the brink of recession and threatening financial 
market stability.

The IMF said it expects the three largest 
economies, the United States, China and the 
euro area to continue to stall, adding that “the 
worst is yet to come, and for many people, 
2023 will feel like a recession.”

The impact of higher interest rates has 
wrought havoc in the high-flying world 
of cryptocurrencies. In May, the crash of 
“stablecoin’’ TerraLuna from US$80 at the 
start of the month to a fraction of a cent in 
a few days reverberated around the market, 
led to billions being lost but also served as a 
stark reminder to investors of the dangers of 
investing in cryptos.

INVESTOR EDUCATION 

The crypto crash and the turmoil being 
experienced in most markets also highlights the 
importance of investor education, an area in 

which SIAS has been actively involved for the 
past 20 years.

We now host regular online lessons that cover 
a wide variety of topics ranging from basic 
product knowledge and introductory financial 
statement analysis to more advanced areas 
such as understanding futures contracts and 
issues related to ESG (environment, social, 
governance) investing. These courses have 
proved immensely popular with the public and 
have benefited thousands of retail investors.

Rest assured that against a cloudy backdrop of 
volatile financial markets, SIAS will continue to 
play a central role in ensuring that the public 
invest prudently and knowledgeably.

Another feature of the latest “new normal’’ 
is the listing of Special Purpose Acquisition 
Companies or SPACs for short. The Singapore 
Exchange (SGX) amended its listing rules in 
September 2021 to allow this novel listing 
vehicle to make its appearance here and in 
January 2022, the first three SPACs made 
their debuts on SGX.

So far, none of the three has yet “de-
SPACed’’ or found a target company to invest 
in, but investors should know that when this 
does happen, SIAS stands ready to provide 
assistance. As I highlighted in my message 
last year, SIAS will appoint a research firm 
to provide an independent assessment of the 
de-SPAC or target company, from its panel of 
research firms which SIAS will administer.

The research, which will be based on the 
business fundamentals of the target, will 
provide guidance to help investors make an 
informed decision on how to vote for the 
proposal merger with the target company.

PRESIDENT’S
MESSAGE
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INVESTOR RIGHTS AND 
COMMUNICATION 

Throughout the past 12 months, SIAS has been 
an active participant in ensuring minorities have 
all their questions answered when companies 
put forth complex proposals.

To this end, SIAS organised meetings with 
senior managements at which shareholders’ 
questions were presented and answered, and 
then posted videos of these meetings online. 
For example, this was done for SPH’s proposal 
to de-merge its media unit and its decision to 
recommend shareholders accept a privatisation 
offer from a consortium called Cuscaden Peak, 
and for the merger of two Mapletree trusts.

Shareholders had the opportunity of watching 
and listening to the answers from top 
managements of these companies and were 
thus able to make an informed decision when 
voting on these proposals.

In total, SIAS conducted 31 such sessions 
throughout the year. In this connection, I am 
happy to report that an increasing number of 
firms are now approaching SIAS for assistance 
to set up similar virtual information sessions 
when seeking shareholder approval for 
complicated deals. 

In the same vein, SIAS has been a strong 
advocate for companies to conduct their 
shareholder meetings either fully in person or 
in hybrid fashion, and for the authorities to do 
away with the fully on-line option.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In total, SIAS issued 18 press statements and 
14 commentaries throughout the past year. 
This year, articles published in the Straits Times 
and Business Times by SIAS touched on several 
topics, including how a disclosure-based 
regime depends on having the right blend of 
market and official discipline, what can be 
done to avoid a repeat of the penny stock 
crash of 2013, and why individual investors 
should take into account their own personal 
circumstances and financial situation when 
casting their votes and not simply follow other 
minorities, even if those minorities are fund 
managers.

In addition, when deemed necessary, SIAS 
has raised issues with companies over 
their governance practices. For example, 
in May, SIAS publicly raised concern over 
developments at Hwa Hong Corporation and 
urged greater clarity with regards to certain 
independent directors in order to safeguard 
the interests of minorities. Thanks to our efforts, 
those issues were then resolved satisfactorily.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SIAS’ total revenue had been boosted by 
an increase in the number of companies’ 
sponsorship of their shareholders for SIAS 
Associate Membership and administrative 
fees derived from organising shareholder 
engagement programmes. In addition, as 
announced in the annual report last year, SIAS 
has also received funding from MAS’ FSDF 
grant.
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These steady streams of income had 
strengthened SIAS’ financial position to carry 
out its mission to provide investors with more 
updated investor education programmes, closer 
engagement with companies through dialogues 
sessions and webinars, provision of timely 
advice on corporate actions to shareholders, 
especially retail shareholders to enable them 
to make informed investment decisions and 
advancing good corporate governance 
practices.

In terms of overall financial performance, 
SIAS revenue saw a small but steady increase 
from $3.003 million in FY21 to $3.084 
million in FY22 despite pandemic restrictions. 
The increase in revenue mainly came from 
more companies signing up for corporate 
governance statement of support and more 
dialogue sessions organised by SIAS. 

Expenses had increased by about 15% from 
$2.128 million in FY21 to $2.442 million in 
FY22 due to the increase in the number of 
programmes including the hybrid Investors’ 
Choice Awards 2021. Higher costs were 
also incurred for digitalisation services and 
professional services for the development 
of organisation-related projects e.g. the 
remuneration framework, upgrade to office 
Microsoft 365 and Bloomberg terminal 
subscription.

Despite a $233K or 27% decrease in net 
income from $875K in FY21 to $642K in 
FY 22, I am pleased to inform that with the 
cumulated surpluses together with a prudent 
approach to management of expenditures, 
net assets were boosted by 36% from $1.781 

million in FY21 to $2.428 million in FY22. This 
had improved the reserve ratio from 0.84 
in FY21 to 0.99 in FY22, closer to achieving 
SIAS’ target of 1. This result provides good 
assurance that SIAS has the financial stability 
and the means for the continued development 
of its activities.  
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VISION & 
MISSION

OUR MISSION

OUR VISION
An Educated,  

Engaged and Empowered  
investment community

WE ADVOCATE
Sustainable and stable 
stakeholder relationships 
in the investment 
community

WE SAFEGUARD 
AND PROTECT
Investor rights in 
Singapore

WE EMPOWER
Investors through 
education and timely 
information

WE PROMOTE
Fair and transparent 
corporate governance 
standards, regulations 
and practices
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OUR HONORARY 
APPOINTMENTS

Dr. Tony Tan Keng Yam
Former President, 

Republic of Singapore

Date of Appointment: 12 Oct 2017

Mr. John Lim Hwee Chiang
Co-Founder and Group Chief Executive Officer, 

ARA Asset Management Limited

Date of Appointment: 1 Jan 2019

Dr. Stephen Riady
Executive Chairman,  

OUE Limited

Date of Appointment: 1 Jun 2018

Mr. Daniel Teo Tong How
Chairman and Managing Director,  
Hong How Group of Companies

Date of Appointment: 1 Aug 2018

Chief
Patron

Patron

Patron

Chairman
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MANAGEMENT  
COMMITTEE
(2021 - 2023) 
The Association is managed by a Management 
Committee (MC) elected by members at the 2021
AGM comprising of the following members:

Mr. David Gerald
President 
Chairman - Constitution Amendment and Membership Sub 
Committee and Committee Member - Legal Affairs & Discipline 
Sub Committee

Mr. David Gerald, a former lawyer, magistrate and DPP, is the Founder 
and CEO of SIAS. He is a member of the Corporate Governance Advisory 
Committee of MAS and a member of the Listing Advisory Committee, 
Disciplinary Committee and Appeals Committee of Singapore Exchange. He 
represents SIAS on the OECD Asian Corporate Governance Roundtable.

• First elected to MC: Jun 1999
• Elected as President: Jun 1999 – 2023

Mr. Loh Uantchern
Vice President 
Chairman - Remuneration & Human Resource, Digital & IT Sub 
Committees and Committee Member - Investor Education Sub 
Committee

Mr. Loh Uantchern is the CEO, Asia Pacific for Black Sun, an international 
stakeholder communications agency. He was the President of the Institute of 
Internal Auditors in Singapore from 2009 to 2012.  
He also volunteers at the Kidney Dialysis Foundation and Shared Services 
for Charities.

• First elected to MC: Sep 2011
• Elected as Hon. Secretary: Sep 2011 – Oct 2015; as Vice President: 

Oct 2015 – 2023
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Mr. Ang Hao Yao
Honorary Secretary 
Chairman - Investor Education Sub Committee and Committee 
Member - Constitution Amendment and Membership Sub 
Committees

Mr. Ang Hao Yao is a private investor and serves as the Chairman of 
Credit Counselling Singapore and past Chairman of SATA CommHealth. 
He also serves on the board of the charities The National Kidney 
Foundation and the SingHealth Fund.

• First elected to MC: Sep 2003
• Elected as Committee Member: Sep 2003 – Oct 2009;  

Oct 2015 – 2019; as Hon. Secretary: Oct 2019 – 2023

Mr. Melvin Yong
Honorary Treasurer 
Committee Member - Remuneration & Human Resource, 
Constitution Amendment, Membership and Digital & IT Sub 
Committees

Mr. Melvin Yong is Singapore Country Head of CPA Australia and leads 
initiatives to grow and serve its 8,600 strong membership in Singapore. He 
is also former Executive Business Editor/Presenter at Mediacorp and a well-
known media veteran in Singapore and the Asia Pacific region. 

He has more than 26 years experience in corporate and financial 
journalism, discussion moderation, public relations, news presentation and 
digital integration.

• First elected to MC: Oct 2015
• Elected as Committee Member: Oct 2015 – 2021; as Hon Treasurer: 

Oct 2021 – 2023

Mr. Robson Lee
Asst Honorary Secretary 
Chairman - Legal Affairs & Discipline Sub Committee, Committee 
Members - Remuneration & Human Resource, Constitution 
Amendment Sub Committees

Mr. Robson Lee is a Senior Corporate Finance Lawyer with more than 28 
years of legal practice experience. He is also the Chairman of the  
Audit Committee of the Law Society of Singapore. 

• First elected to MC: Sep 2011
• Elected as Asst. Hon Secretary: Sep 2011 – 2023
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Ms. Linda Hoon 
Asst Honorary Treasurer 
Committee Member - Constitution Amendment, Corporate 
Governance & Sustainability and Legal Affairs & Discipline Sub 
Committees

Ms. Linda Hoon is a C-suite executive with competencies in legal, corporate 
governance, board practices and compliance. She is the General Counsel 
& Company Secretary of OFI Group Limited (part of the Olam Group) and 
has Asia Pacific coverage. She has keen interest in Corporate and ESG 
governance matters, board stewardship and leading company secretarial 
practice areas. 

• First elected to MC: Oct 2021
• Elected as Asst Hon Treasurer: Oct 2021 – 2023

Ms. Emily Goh
Committee Member 
Committee Member - Investor Education, Membership Sub 
Committees

Ms. Emily Goh is an experienced private equity professional with numerous 
successful exits under her belt. Her extensive business advisory activities 
cover strategic alliances and cross-border mergers and acquisitions 
(“M&As”)

Over her 18-year career, Emily structured and launched numerous private 
equity funds in Asia as well as raised follow on capital for high-growth 
companies. She was most recently the Portfolio Director at Elite Partners 
Capital investing in European game-changing technology companies. Prior 
to that, Emily was the Principal and Head of Investor Relations at private 
equity firm Tembusu Partners, where she handled pan-Asian education and 
technology investments and oversaw the firm’s largest exit by value and 
returns.
 
A graduate of the University of Singapore, Emily is serving her second term 
on the Management Committee of the Securities Investors Association of 
Singapore.

• First appointed to MC: Oct 2017 
• Appointed as Committee Member: Oct 2017 – Oct 2019
• Elected as Asst Hon Treasurer: Oct 2019 – 2021; as Committee 

Member: Oct 2021– 2023 

GOVERNANCE
REPORT
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Ms. May Loh
Committee Member 
Deputy Chairperson - Corporate Governance & Sustainability Sub 
Committee and Committee Member - Legal Affairs & Discipline Sub 
Committee 

Ms. May Loh is a Senior Advisor with the Albright Stonebridge Group and 
Conservation International (Asia Pacific). With a vision to see capital used for 
purposeful and lasting social change, May is Chairman of the Governing 
Board of The Helping Hand, a halfway house, and serves on various boards 
of IPC’s including the Board of Trustees of the Singapore University of 
Technology and Design, Youth Guidance Outreach Services (YGOS) and 
Credit Counselling Singapore. An alumnus of Harvard Law (LL.M), May was 
with the Singapore Legal Service before leaving in 2018 to pursue her 
interests in sustainability and governance. 

• First appointed to MC: Oct 2019
• Appointed as Committee Member: Oct 2019 – 2021
• Elected as Committee Member: Oct 2021 – 2023

Mr. David Toh
Committee Member 
Chairman - Corporate Governance & Sustainability Sub Committee 
and Committee Member - Remuneration & Human Resource and 
Investor Education Sub Committees

Mr. David Toh is the Risks & Controls & Internal Audit Leader of PwC 
Singapore (“PwC”) and PwC’s Governance Board Chairman. He is a Board 
member and Audit & Risk Committee Chairman at Yellow Ribbon Singapore 
and Board member at SEEDs Capital. He is also the Treasurer and 
Management Committee member of Singapore Children’s Society, Board 
of Governor of The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Singapore and Vice 
Chairman of Tampines Central Citizens’ Consultative Committee. 

•   First elected to MC: Oct 2019
•   Elected as Hon Treasurer Oct 2019 – 2021; as Committee Member: 

Oct 2021– 2023 

Mr. Mervyn Lim
Committee Member 
Chairman - Audit & Risk Committee

Mr. Mervyn Lim was the past Deputy Group CEO and Group CFO, 
Singapore Post Limited. He serves as a Board member and is the Audit and 
Risk Committee Chairman of SIAS since 2019. He is on NCSS’s SunRay 
program as CEO of a Social Service Agency.

• First elected to MC: Oct 2019
• Elected as Committee Member: Oct 2019 – 2023

GOVERNANCE
REPORT
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OUR GOVERNANCE 
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of Heritage” by the National Heritage Board for 
2008 and 2013.

Key Functions: To ensure President and Management 
Committee comply with the Constitution and act in the 
interest of the Association.

COMPOSITION OF THE MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE
The Management Committee strives to ensure that 
the members, as a group, have core competencies in 
areas such as accounting and finance, management, 
law, strategic planning, social enterprise and community-
related experience and that they bring on board a 
degree of diversity and viewpoints, expertise and 
experiences. No Management Committee member 
shall be related to another member by blood or 
marriage. Except for the Founder and President, who 
is also the CEO and staff of the Association, and is a 
member of the Management Committee allowed by the 
Constitution, no other staff is on the SIAS Management 
Committee. In addition, other members of management 
are invited from time to time to attend and make 
presentations at Management Committee meetings.

The Management Committee believes that to be 
effective it should not be too large, whilst at the 
same time ensuring that there is sufficient range and 
diversity of expertise, gender, and viewpoints. Our 
Management Committee size ensures a good balance 
between continuity, renewal, and compliance with 
charity regulations. The Management Committee has a 
formalised process for the appointment /  
re-appointment of committee members; including the 
President and members of Governance Committees 
and forms part of the Constitution. All candidates have 
to be cleared by the Nomination Committee to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of the Constitution.

One of the three tenets of SIAS is promoting good corporate governance 
practices. Therefore, it is important to us that SIAS practices what we preach. 
It has now become even more essential for SIAS as a Charity and an IPC to 
embrace good governance practices. The following are some of the key initiatives 
undertaken by the Management Committee to adopt good governance at SIAS 
by appointing an Honorary Chairman and three governance committees.

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. Daniel Teo was appointed as the 5th Honorary 
Chairman with effect from 1 August 2018.

The appointment of the Honorary Chairman, who 
is independent and non-executive, is to provide the 
check and balance within the Association, as provided 
for by our Constitution. This Constitutional appointment 
is all the more necessary as the current founding 
President is also the Chief Executive. The Chairman 
is empowered to intervene in the event he is of the 
view that the President and or the Committee has 
acted in breach of the Association’s Constitution 
or not acting in the interest of the Association. In 
such a situation, he can direct the President or the 
Committee, as the case may be, to comply with the 
Constitution forthwith and to act in the interest of the 
Association. The Chairman has to be a person of high 
stature and extensive knowledge and experience.

Mr. Daniel Teo is presently a director of the Tong 
Eng Group of Companies, and is the Chairman and 
Managing Director of the Hong How Group of 
Companies. As a noted real estate developer and 
investor, Mr. Teo was the President of the Real Estate 
Development Association of Singapore for numerous 
terms, the last term being from 1998 to 2001. He 
was also the World President of the International 
Real Estate Federation from 2000 to 2001. 

Some of his projects have won the Urban 
Redevelopment Authority’s Architectural Heritage 
Award for Conservation and Adaptive Re-use 
in 1995, 2010 and 2013. Mr. Teo is an active 
promoter of culture and arts in Singapore. In 1981, 
he was the founder member of the Singapore 
Cultural Foundation which has since merged into the 
National Arts Council. Mr. Teo was awarded “Patron 
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The Management Committee (MC) is required under the Constitution to meet once in two months. The MC
met six (6) times during the financial year ended 30 June 2022, on the following dates:

• 14 July 2021 • 8 September 2021 • 10 November 2021 
• 19 January 2022 • 29 March 2022 • 27 May 2022

As and when needed, the Management Committee may also hold additional meetings. The Management 
Committee also reviews the vision, mission and strategies of SIAS and undertakes performance reviews of the 
Association during the above meetings to ensure that the objects of our constitution are fulfilled.

Below please find the attendance of the Management Committee. 
(Note, the current Management Committee was elected to office on 30 Oct 2021.

Mr. David Gerald
President (June 1999 onwards)

 Attendance: 5 out of 6

Mr. Loh Uantchern
Hon. Secretary (Sep 11 – Oct 15) 
Vice President (Oct 15 onwards)  

 Attendance: 6 out of 6

Mr. Ang Hao Yao
Committee Member 
(Sep 03 – Oct 09; Oct 15 – Oct 19)
Hon. Secretary (Oct 19 onwards)  

 Attendance: 6 out of 6

Mr. Robson Lee
Asst. Hon. Secretary (Sep 11 onwards)

 Attendance: 3 out of 6

Mr. David Toh
Hon. Treasurer (Oct 19 – Oct 21)
Committee Member (Oct 21 onwards) 

 Attendance: 4 out of 6

Ms. Emily Goh
Committee Member (Oct 17 – Oct 19)
Asst. Hon. Treasurer (Oct 19 – Oct 21)
Committee Member (Oct 21 onwards) 

 Attendance: 5 out of 6

Ms. Linda Hoon 
Committee Member & Asst Hon. Secretary 
(Oct 21 onwards)

 Attendance: 3 out of 6

Mr. Melvin Yong
Committee Member (Oct 15 – Oct 21) 
Hon Treasurer (Oct 21 onwards)

 Attendance: 6 out of 6

Mr. Mervyn Lim
Committee Member (Oct 19 onwards)

 Attendance: 5 out of 6

Ms. May Loh
Committee Member (Oct 19 onwards)

 Attendance: 5 out of 6

MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

13
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AUDIT & RISK SUB COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee is a Constitutional appointment 
by the Management Committee, has been renamed 
the Audit & Risk Committee after the responsibility of 
reviewing the risks of the association was included as 
part of the terms of the committee. Its members are 
appointed for a term of 4 years. The primary function of 
this Committee is to assist the Management Committee 
in fulfilling the oversight and fiduciary responsibilities, to 
act in the interest of SIAS’ members and stakeholders as 
a whole, by supporting the Management Committee in 
their responsibilities regarding issues of risk, control and 
governance and associated assurance.

The Committee oversees and appraises the nature 
and extent of the audit process carried out by the 
external and internal auditors. It also reviews the 
findings of the external and internal auditors relating to 

The Audit & Risk Committee members met three times 
in the financial year to review internal controls, PDPA 
risks and evaluate internal audit firms’ proposals for 
auditing services and drafting of the finance manual. 
The Committee also met with external auditors to 
review the financial year end audited accounts. The 
attendance of meetings is as follows:

OUR GOVERNANCE 
FRAMEWORK

GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEES

their assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the significant internal controls, including operational, 
financial, compliance controls, and risk management 
processes and evaluated adherence to established 
policies, processes and practices. It also reviews the 
actions proposed to be taken by the management to 
address the findings of the auditors.

The Committee also undertakes the review of the 
financial statements with the external auditors and 
recommends to the Management Committee for 
approval. The Audit Committee has examined 
the audited accounts and has met with the senior 
management to clarify matters arising from the 
preparation of the audited accounts making sure the 
processes are complete. The external auditors have 
unrestricted access to the Audit & Risk Sub Committee.

Mr. Mervyn Lim
 Attendance: 3 out of 3

Mr. Terence Wong
 Attendance: 3 out of 3

Mr. Stephen Chen
 Attendance: 3 out of 3

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. Mervyn Lim
CEO, The Helping Hand

First joined AC on 22 Jul 2019

MEMBER 
Mr. Terence Wong
CEO, Azure Capital

First joined AC on Jul 2020

MEMBER 
Mr. Stephen Chen
Private Investor

First joined AC on Jul 2020

(2019 - 2023)
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The Nomination Committee is a Constitutional 
appointment by the Management Committee. The 
objective of the Nomination Committee is to lead the 
process of selection of the most suitable candidate 
or candidates for appointment to the Management 
Committee and to make recommendations to 
the Management Committee. The members are 
appointed for a term of 3 years.

The Nomination Committee reviews the applications 
from Ordinary members intending to stand for the 
Management Committee, at least 21 days from 
the Annual General Meeting, and submits to the 
Nomination Committee for approval within 7 days 
of submission. Once the Nomination Committee has 
approved the nomination, then election will follow  
at the Annual General Meeting with a simple 
majority.

OUR GOVERNANCE 
FRAMEWORK

The Nomination Committee ensures that the 
candidate is of good standing, is free from any 
criminal record and is not an undischarged 
bankrupt and is able to contribute to SIAS. The 
candidate should not have been removed from any 
Committee or Member of an Organisation for poor 
performance, neglect or unruly conduct.

The Nomination Committee members met once during 
the financial year 2021 to consider and approve 
the nomination of ten candidates to serve on the 
Management Committee of SIAS for the term  
Oct 2021 – Oct 2023.

Mr. Ng Siew Quan
 Attendance: 1 out of 1

Mr. Robert Yeo
 Attendance: 1 out of 1

Mr. Vincent Chen
 Attendance: 1 out of 1

CHAIRMAN
Mr. Ng Siew Quan
Partner, PwC 

MEMBER 
Mr. Robert Yeo
Former Executive  
Director & CEO, STADA 

MEMBER 
Mr. Vincent Chen
Private Investor 
Former Banker

NOMINATION SUB COMMITTEE (2021 - 2023)
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REMUNERATION & HUMAN
The Remuneration & Human Resource Sub 
Committee is a Constitutional appointment by 
the Management Committee. The Remuneration 
& HR Sub Committee exercises oversight of the 
renumeration policies of SIAS. It ensures that SIAS 
has appropriate remuneration policies and decides 
on the remuneration of its senior executives, which 
includes performance incentive plans and other 
compensation and benefits.

The committee ensures salary competitiveness, 
reviews the basis and quantum for the performance 
bonus payment and annual salary increments.

The committee members met three times during the 
financial year to review the salaries, bonuses to staff 
and discuss their performance with the CEO. The 
CEO who is also the Founder and President was not 

involved in the discussion of his performance and 
bonus, which is decided by the MC recommended 
by the Remuneration Committee. The Chairman of 
Remuneration Committee has oversight of bonus 
payment to staff who are Managers and below to 
ensure fairness of basis.

Mr. Loh Uantchern
 Attendance: 3 out of 3

Mr. David Toh
 Attendance: 3 out of 3

Mr. Robson Lee
 Attendance: 3 out of 3

Mr. Melvin Yong
 Attendance: 3 out of 3

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. Loh Uantchern 
Chief Executive Officer, Black Sun 

MEMBER 
Mr. Robson Lee
Senior Corporate Finance Lawyer 

MEMBER 
Mr. David Toh
Risks & Controls & Internal Audit Leader,
PwC Singapore

MEMBER 
Mr. Melvin Yong
Singapore Country Head,  
CPA Australia

RESOURCE SUB COMMITTEE (2021 - 2023)
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INVESTOR EDUCATION SUB COMMITTEE
2021 - 2023

CONSTITUTION AMENDMENT COMMITTEE

 Terms of Reference  To amend the Constitution to plug the gaps and provide provisions to cater 
for future needs.

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. David Gerald
Founder, President &  

Chief Executive Officer, 
SIAS

MEMBER 
Mr. Ang Hao Yao

Chairman, 
Credit Counselling Singapore

MEMBER 
Ms. Linda Hoon
General Counsel &  

Company Secretary,  
OFI Group Limited  

(part of Olam Group)

MEMBER 
Mr. Robson Lee

Senior Corporate Finance 
Lawyer

MEMBER 
Mr. Melvin Yong

Singapore Country Head,  
CPA Australia
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Terms of Reference  The main task of this Committee is to formulate a broad based systematic 
approach to instill a greater awareness of investment processes and 
opportunities for investments, so that individuals can make informed decisions 
towards investments.

INVESTOR EDUCATION COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. Ang Hao Yao

Chairman, 
Credit Counselling 

Singapore

MEMBER 
Ms. Emily Goh

Chief Executive Officer,  
Three S Asset 
Management

MEMBER 
Mr. Loh Uantchern
Chief Executive Officer,  

Black Sun

MEMBER 
Mr. David Toh
Risks & Controls & 

Internal Audit Leader, 
PwC Singapore
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference • To review the approach, development and promotion of best
– Corporate Governance  practices in disclosure requirements amongst public listed companies 

in Singapore
 • To monitor company activities and develop SIAS position papers 

as and when necessary to protect and advance the interests of all 
investors in Singapore

 • To make recommendations through SIAS to such regulatory bodies to 
advance the interests of investors

 • To address minority rights issues
 • Improve quality of engagement at company general meetings

Terms of Reference • To review the current positions taken by SIAS on investor rights and
– Investor Rights  recommend to the Management Committee any proposed changes 

and where a position has not been taken, the to advise SIAS accordingly
 • To assist the President to ensure the press statements issued by him 

on behalf of SIAS are aligned with the Association’s stand on various 
investor rights’ issues

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. David Toh
Risks & Controls & 

Internal Audit Leader,  
PwC Singapore

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON 
Ms. May Loh

Consultant,  
Lucidity Advisors 

Pte Ltd

MEMBER 
Mr. Alvin Chiang

Consultant, 
Russell Reynolds Associate

MEMBER 
Ms. Linda Hoon

General Counsel & Company 
Secretary,  

OFI Group Limited 
(part of Olam Group)

MEMBER 
Prof Lawrence Loh
Centre for Governance 

and Sustainability, 
NUS
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MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference  The Membership Sub-Committee will make recommendations on how SIAS 
could increase its ordinary / voting membership. It will review the current 
categories of membership available and recommend any changes to the 
categories and membership fee chargeable. It will also look into the types 
of membership promotional activities and set targets and guidelines for the 
membership department to implement.
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CHAIRMAN 
Mr. David Gerald
Founder, President & 

Chief Executive Officer, 
SIAS

MEMBER 
Mr. Ang Hao Yao

Chairman, 
Credit Counselling 

Singapore

MEMBER 
Mr. Melvin Yong

Singapore Country Head, 
CPA Australia

MEMBER 
Ms. Emily Goh

Chief Executive Officer, 
Three S Asset 
Management

DIGITAL AND IT COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference  To consider and recommend solutions for any IT or Digital issues the 
association may face. The committee may also recommend how SIAS can 
position itself to face technology challenges in the future.

MEMBER 
Mr. Melvin Yong

Singapore Country Head,  
CPA Australia

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. Loh Uantchern
Chief Executive Officer,  

Black Sun
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LEGAL AFFAIRS & DISCIPLINE COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference  Any legal issue affecting the Association shall be handled by this Committee 
which will make recommendations to the Management Committee. It will also 
be in-charge of members’ discipline as per the Constitution.

MEMBER 
Mr. David Gerald
Founder, President & 

Chief Executive Officer, 
SIAS

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. Robson Lee

Senior Corporate 
Finance Lawyer

MEMBER 
Ms. Linda Hoon
General Counsel & 

Company Secretary, 
OFI Group Limited  

(part of Olam Group)

MEMBER 
Ms. May Loh

Consultant, 
Lucidity Advisors  

Pte Ltd
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INVESTOR RIGHTS COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference  The Investor Rights Committee identifies efforts and activities to observe, 
safeguard, improve and advance the rights and claims of an investor, in their 
investments. This will include identifying gaps and market inefficiencies (e.g. 
trading issues, glitches, scams); review product structures to enhance investor 
protection (e.g. SPACs, SIPs and bond frameworks); advance shareholder 
rights (in corporate actions, liquidation etc). This committee will comprise of 
industry leaders.

CHAIRMAN 
Mr. David Gerald
Founder, President &  

Chief Executive Officer, 
SIAS

MEMBER 
Ms. Elaine Lim
Honorary Advisor,  

SIAS

MEMBER 
Ms. Emily Goh

Chief Executive Officer, 
Three S Asset Management

MEMBER 
Mr. Ben Chester Cheong

Lecturer, School of Law,
SUSS

MEMBER 
Mr. Robson Lee

Senior Corporate Finance 
Lawyer
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GOVERNANCE EVALUATION CHECKLIST
(As at 30 Jun 2022)

S/N Code Guideline
Code 

ID
Response 

(select whichever is 
applicable)

Explanation
(if Code guideline is not complied with)

BOARD GOVERNANCE

1

Induction and orientation are 
provided to incoming governing 
board members upon joining the 
Board.

1.1.2 Complied

New MC members are briefed 
by the President on their roles and 
responsibilities. They are provided 
with a kit about the organisation e.g. 
Constitution, organisation chart, MC 
Meetings schedule, latest approved 
financial statement, latest Annual 
Report and terms of reference of 
committees. They are also provided 
links to legislations like the Charities 
Act. They are required to sign a 
Confidentiality Agreement and 
Disclosure of conflict of interest.

2
Are there governing board members 
holding staff appointments?

Yes

The President is also the CEO of 
the Association and Founder of the 
Association. The Constitution allows 
the President to be CEO. The CEO 
is appointed by the Management 
Committee.

3
Staff does not chair the Board and 
does not comprise more than one 
third of the Board.

1.1.3 Not Complied

The President is also the CEO of 
the Association and Founder of 
the Association. The Constitution 
allows the President to be CEO. 
The CEO is a staff appointment. 
However, the President and CEO is 
just one of the 10 members of the 
Management Committee. All other 
members are independent.

4

There are written job descriptions 
for the staff’s executive functions and 
operational duties, which are distinct 
from the staff’s Board role.

1.1.5 Complied

Staff executive functions and 
operational duties are detailed 
in the employment contract 
which is distinct from roles on the 
Management Committee which are 
detailed in the Constitution.
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S/N Code Guideline
Code 

ID
Response 

(select whichever is 
applicable)

Explanation
(if Code guideline is not complied with)

5

The Treasurer of the charity (or any 
person holding an equivalent position 
in the charity, e.g. Finance Committee 
Chairman or a governing board 
member responsible for overseeing the 
finances of the charity) can only serve 
a maximum of 4 consecutive years. 
If the charity has not appointed any 
governing board member to oversee 
its finances, it will be presumed that 
the Chairman oversees the finances 
of the charity.

1.1.7 Complied
The Treasurer’s position is only for a 
maximum of two consecutive years 
under the Constitution.

6

All governing board members 
must submit themselves for re- 
nomination and re- appointment, 
at least once every 3 years.

1.1.8 Complied

The Management Committee 
members are to be re-elected 
every 2 years according to the 
Constitution.

7

The Board conducts self evaluation 
to assess its performance and 
effectiveness once during its term or 
every 3 years, whichever is shorter.

1.1.12 Complied

The Management Committee has 
a framework for self-evaluation. 
It conducts a self-evaluation and 
assesses its performance on a 
yearly basis.

8
Is there any governing board member 
who has served for more than 10 
consecutive years?

Yes

The President who is the Founder 
and three other members have 
served more than 10 years 
However, the remaining 6 members 
of the Management Committee 
have served below 10 years.

9

The charity discloses in its annual 
report the reasons for retaining the 
governing board member who has 
served for more than 10 consecutive 
years.

1.1.13 Complied

The Nomination Committee discusses 
and evaluates the suitability of 
Management Committee members. 
They agreed that the President and 
Founder together with the three 
other members, who has served 
more than 10 years, have provided 
strong leadership. 

10
There are documented terms of 
reference for the Board and each of 
its committees.

1.2.1 Complied

The committees, namely, Audit, 
Remuneration and Nomination 
committees have their own terms of 
reference and are approved by the 
Management Committee.
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S/N Code Guideline
Code 

ID
Response 

(select whichever is 
applicable)

Explanation
(if Code guideline is not complied with)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

11

There are documented procedures 
for governing board members and 
staff to declare actual or potential 
conflicts of interest to the Board at 
the earliest opportunity.

2.1 Complied

The conflict of interest policy is 
reproduced in this Annual Report 
and each Management Committee 
member and staff is required to 
declare their conflict of interest as 
per the policy.

12

Governing board members do not 
vote or participate in decision making 
on matters where they have a conflict 
of interest.

2.4 Complied

As per the conflict of interest policy, 
the member will have to declare his 
/ her conflict, if it arises, he or she 
will not participate in the discussion 
or programme and will not vote.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

13

The Board periodically reviews and 
approves the strategic plan for the 
charity to ensure that the charity’s 
activities are in line with the charity’s 
objectives.

3.2.2 Complied

The Management Committee 
approves the Annual Plan and 
reviews the activities on an ongoing 
basis.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND VOLUNTEER MANAGEMENT

14
The Board approves documented 
human resource policies for staff.

5.1 Complied

An Employee Handbook, approved 
by the Management Committee, 
is provided to all staff and this is 
reviewed and updated periodically.

15

There is a documented Code of 
Conduct for governing board 
members, staff and volunteers (where 
applicable) which is approved by the 
Board.

5.3 Complied

SIAS has a documented Code 
of Conduct for the Management 
Committee which includes 
professionalism, due diligence, 
honesty; and compliance with laws.

16
There are processes for regular 
supervision, appraisal and 
professional development of staff.

5.5 Complied

The Association conducts bi- 
Annual performance appraisals. 
The Association also supports staff 
professional development and 
encourages self–improvement.

17
Are there volunteers serving in the 
charity?

No
The only volunteers serving in SIAS 
are members of the Management 
Committee.
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S/N Code Guideline
Code 

ID
Response 

(select whichever is 
applicable)

Explanation
(if Code guideline is not complied with)

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

19

There is a documented policy to 
seek the Board’s approval for any 
loans, donations, grants or financial 
assistance provided by the charity 
which are not part of the charity’s 
core charitable programmes.

6.1.1 Complied

SIAS does not provide loans, 
donations, grants or financial 
assistance to staff or external 
parties. This policy is documented 
in the Employee Handbook. 
The Employee Handbook and 
amendments are approved by the 
Management Committee.

20

The Board ensures that internal 
controls for financial matters in key 
areas are in place with documented 
procedures.

6.1.2 Complied

SIAS has established policies 
and procedures for procurement, 
delegation of authority and 
approval limits which are 
documented. Financial limits and 
approvals are also documented in 
the Constitution.

21

The Board ensures that reviews 
of the charity’s internal controls, 
processes, key programmes and 
events are regularly conducted.

6.1.3 Complied

The Association has an internal 
auditor who reviews the internal 
controls of the association. The 
reports are reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and reported to the 
Management Committee.

22

The Board ensures that there is a 
process to identify, and regularly 
monitor and review the charity’s key 
risks.

6.1.4 Complied

The MC has a documented risk 
management policy, and the 
Management Committee regularly 
monitors and discusses risks like 
funding, manpower, resources, and IT.

23

The Board approves an annual 
budget for the charity’s plans and 
regularly monitors the charity’s 
expenditure.

6.2.1 Complied

The Management Committee 
through the oversight of the 
Treasurer approves the Association’s 
annual plan and budget. 
Expenditures are reviewed by the 
MC bi-monthly.

24
Does the charity invest its reserves 
(e.g. in fixed deposits)?

Yes
SIAS has limited reserves placed in 
fixed deposit with 2 local banks.

25
The charity has a documented 
Investment policy approved by the 
Board.

6.4.3 Complied

The association also has a 
documented Investment Policy which 
guides the use of its reserves. SIAS 
adopts a conservative low-risk 
strategy by placing its reserves in 
low-risk fixed deposits. There are no 
investments beyond fixed deposits.
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S/N Code Guideline
Code 

ID
Response 

(select whichever is 
applicable)

Explanation
(if Code guideline is not complied with)

FUNDRAISING PRACTICES

26
Did the charity receive cash 
donations (solicited or unsolicited) 
during the financial year?

Yes
SIAS discloses the donations 
received in the annual report and 
on its website.

27

All collections received (solicited or 
unsolicited) are properly accounted 
for and promptly deposited by the 
charity.

7.2.2 Complied

All donations received are promptly 
accounted for and deposited into 
the bank. Donation receipts are 
issued once cheques are cleared 
and deposited into the bank 
account. Donations and list of 
donors are disclosed to the dollar 
and is appended in the Annual 
Report. List of donors is disclosed 
and updated on the SIAS website.

28
Did the charity receive donations in 
kind during the financial year?

No

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

30

The charity discloses in its annual 
report
(a) the number of Board meetings in 
the financial year; and
(b) the attendance of every governing 
board member at those meetings.

8.2 Complied

SIAS discloses the number of 
Management Committee (MC) 
meetings, the dates of the MC 
meetings as well as the attendance 
of the MC members at the MC 
meetings in the Annual Report.

31
Are governing board members 
remunerated for their services to the 
Board?

No

All Management Committee members 
are volunteers and not remunerated 
for their service as a Management 
Committee member. The President, 
who is the CEO is remunerated for 
his role as CEO only.

34 Does the charity employ paid staff? Yes

35
No staff is involved in setting his own 
remuneration.

2.2 Complied

The Remuneration Committee 
reviews the performance and 
remuneration of the senior 
management including the CEO. 
The Remuneration Committee 
reviews the remuneration of all 
other staff on the recommendation 
of the CEO.
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36

The charity discloses in its annual 
report:
(a) the total annual remuneration for 
each of its 3 highest paid staff who 
each has received remuneration 
(including remuneration received from 
the charity’s subsidiaries) exceeding
$100,000 during the financial year; 
and
(b) whether any of the 3 highest 
paid staff also serves as a governing 
board member of the charity. 
The information relating to the 
remuneration of the staff must be 
presented in bands of $100,000.
OR The charity discloses that none of 
its paid staff receives more than
$100,000 each in annual 
remuneration.

8.4 Complied

SIAS discloses the salaries of 
staff exceeding $100,000. The 
CEO who is also the President 
and Founder of the Association 
is a paid staff and serves on the 
Management Committee governing 
the Association, and is allowed for 
under the Constitution. The salary of 
the CEO is disclosed, to the dollar, 
in the Financial Statement and 
Annual Report. The CEO does not 
participate in any discussion on his 
remuneration. 

37

The charity discloses the number 
of paid staff who satisfies all of the 
following criteria:
(a) the staff is a close member of the 
family* belonging to the Executive 
Head* or a governing board member 
of the charity;
(b) the staff has received remuneration 
exceeding $50,000 during the 
financial year. The information relating 
to the remuneration of the staff must 
be presented in bands of
$100,000.
OR The charity discloses that there 
is no paid staff, being a close 
member of the family* belonging to 
the Executive Head* or a governing 
board member of the charity, who 
has received remuneration exceeding 
$50,000 during the financial year.

8.5 Complied
There are no staff, who are close 
members, of any members of the 
Management Committee in SIAS.

PUBLIC IMAGE

38

The charity has a documented 
communication policy on the release 
of information about the charity 
and its activities across all media 
platforms.

9.2 Complied

It is documented in the Constitution 
that only the President shall release 
information for and by SIAS to any 
media.

S/N Code Guideline
Code 

ID
Response 

(select whichever is 
applicable)

Explanation
(if Code guideline is not complied with)

OUR GOVERNANCE 
FRAMEWORK
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The Audit Committee is a Constitutional 
appointment by the Management Committee. 
Its members are appointed for a term 
of 4 years. The primary function of this 
Committee is to assist the Management 
Committee in fulfilling the oversight and 
fiduciary responsibilities, to act in the interest 
of SIAS’ members and stakeholders as a 
whole, in particular, in the areas of financial 
accountability and reporting.

1.2 Such conflicts may create problems that may 
result in the following:

 a. Cause damage to the Charity’s reputation 
which may lead to its inability to sustain 
operations;

 b. Influence the members’ judgment and 
compromise objectivity when conducting 
the Charity’s affairs;

 c. Restrict free discussion, thus resulting in 
decisions or actions that are not in the 
interests of the Charity; and

 d. Risk the impression that the Charity has 
acted improperly.

1.3 This Policy aims to protect both the Charity 
and its members from any appearance of 
impropriety.

2. DEFINITIONS

2.1 “Charity” refers to the Securities Investors 
Association (Singapore) (SIAS) as the issuer of 
this document.

2.2 “Member” refers to a Management Committee 
member or management member or staff 
member or volunteer member of the charity.

2.3 “Policy” refers to the Conflict of Interest Policy.

2.4 “Interest” means any commitment, investment, 
relationship, obligation, or involvement, 
financial or otherwise that may influence a 
person’s judgement. This would include:

 a. Direct interest – ownership in the name of 
the member / staff;

 b. Indirect interest – ownership beneficially 
held through another investment, estate, 
trust or other intermediary;

 c. Vested interest – personal stake or 
involvement, which may or may not include 
an expectation of financial gain; and

 d. Deemed interest – a member / staff is 
deemed to have an interest which his / her 
spouse / domestic partner holds an interest in.

2.5 A conflict of interest arises when the personal 
interests of the member / staff may potentially 
interfere with the performance of his / her 
duties in the charity. When actual, potential 
or perceived conflict of interest arises, the 
integrity, fairness and accountability of the 
person may be affected, which could impede 
the best interest of the charity.
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3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

3.1 Given the stated purpose of this Policy, we 
are asking:

 a. Management Committee and management 
members to declare their interests, and any 
gifts or hospitality received in connection 
with their role in the Charity; and

 b. Staff and volunteer members to declare 
when the transaction to be effected may 
result in a conflict of interest.

 
3.2 A declaration of interests form is provided 

for this purpose. The types of interest to be 
declared will include, but not limited to the 
following:

 a. Members who have friends or other 
personal or business relationships 
must carefully consider whether those 
relationships create conflicts of interest with 
their entrusted role in the Charity. Examples 
include:

  i. Hiring a relative or friend as an 
employee or vendor,

  ii. Buying or selling goods or services from 
/ to a family business for which others 
might compete,

  iii. Having a personal relationship where 
there is an immediate reporting 
relationship,

  iv. Volunteering and / or having 
memberships in any other charities, or

  v. Receiving goods / services as 
beneficiaries.

 b. Members must disclose any outside 
activities, financial interest or relationship 
that may pose a real, potential or 
perceived conflict of interest. Disclosures 
are to be made to the Management 
Committee / Senior Management / 
Supervisors and Head of the Human 
Resources Department, with the required 
approval obtained before accepting any 
position as an officer or director of an 
outside business.

3.3 To be effective, the declaration of interests 
needs to be updated in written form at least 
annually and also when any changes occur.

3.4 In situations where members are not sure what 
to declare, or whether / when your declaration 
needs to be updated, they are strongly 
encouraged to err on the side of caution or 
seek advice from the Management Committee 
/ Senior Management / Supervisors.

3.5 All disclosure of interest made by members 
and decisions made by the Management 
Committee / Senior Management of the 
charity on such matters must be recorded, 
updated and filed with the Head of the Human 
Resources Department (or his designee).

4. OPERATING PROCEDURES

4.1 If the Management Committee needs to make 
a decision on an issue where the Management 
Committee member(s) has / have an interest, 
it is the responsibility of the Management 
Committee member(s) to:

 a. Identify the potential conflict of interest;

 b. Not participate in discussion of the program 
or motion being considered; and

 c. Not vote on the issue.

4.2 If the Management Committee needs to make 
a decision on an issue where the Management 
Committee member(s) has / have an interest, 
it is the responsibility of the Management 
Committee to ensure that:

 a. All decisions are made by vote, with a 
two-thirds majority required based on the 
presence of a quorum; and

 b. Interested board members must not vote on 
matters affecting their own interests.
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4.3 It is the responsibility of the Management 
Committee to:

 a. Only decide to hire or contract with 
any vendor if they are the best qualified 
individuals available, and willing to provide 
the goods or services needed at the best 
price. The Management Committee’s 
decision shall not be influenced in any way 
by the fact that a Management Committee 
member has an interest in the contract.

 b. Record in the minutes of the Management 
Committee Meeting the potential conflict of 
interest, and the use of the procedures and 
criteria of this policy.

 
4.4 It is the sole responsibility of any member 

of the Charity to report any possible real, 
potential or perceived conflict of interest. If it is 
an oversight of the Charity, the member shall 
promptly inform the Charity that he has been 
put in such a position of conflict of interest.

4.5 No member of the Charity shall derive any 
personal profit or gain, directly or indirectly, 
by reason of his or her participation with 
the Charity. Each individual shall disclose 
to the Charity any personal interest which 
he or she may have in any matter pending 
before the organisation and shall refrain from 
participation in any decision on such matter.

4.6 Any member of the Charity or of a client 
organisation or vendor of the Charity shall 
identify his or her affiliation with such agency 
or agencies; further, he shall not participate in 
the decision affecting that agency.

4.7 Any member of the Charity or its Consultants 
/ Business Partners shall refrain from obtaining 
any list of clients for personal or private 
solicitation purposes at any time during the 
term of their affiliation.

4.8 Any member who is also a user of the 
Charity’s services, or the carer of someone 
who uses the charity’s services shall not be 
involved in decisions that directly affect the 
service received by the person he / she cares 
for. He / She shall declare his / her interest 
at the earliest opportunity and withdraw from 
any subsequent discussion. The same applies if 
the conflict concerns any other reason(s).

4.9 A member of the Charity may, however, 
participate in discussions from which he / she 
may indirectly benefit, for example where the 
benefits are universal to all users.

4.10 The Management Committee of the charity 
shall have the right to suspend any involvement 
of any member /staff when it has come to their 
attention that a potential, actual or perceived 
conflict has arisen, but has not been voluntarily 
disclosed by the relevant member.

5. VIOLATIONS

5.1 Any violation will result in discipline, up to 
and including termination from employment or 
removal from the Management Committee, or 
expulsion from being a volunteer member of 
the charity.

The Conflict of Interest Policy is also published on the SIAS website.
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SIAS is committed to the highest standards of 
honesty, transparency, ethical and legal conduct 
and accountability. The whistleblowing policy aims 
to provide an avenue for employees and external 
parties to raise genuine concerns relating to any 
aspect of SIAS’ operations, including serious breaches 
of the code of conduct by employees. The aim of the 
policy is to:

a. Promote standards for good financial and 
corporate practices and to deter wrongdoing.

b. Provide proper avenues for employees and 
external parties to raise concerns about 
suspected improprieties and receive feedback on 
any action taken.

c. Give employees and external parties the 
assurance that they will be protected from 
reprisals or victimisation for whistleblowing in 
good faith.

d. Reportable incidents

Some examples of concerns covered (though not 
exhaustive) by this policy include:
a. Impropriety, corruption, theft / misuse of SIAS’ 

properties / assets / resources.

b. Conduct which is an offence or breach of law.

c. Breach of or failure to implement or comply with 
SIAS’ policies.

d. Concerns about SIAS’ accounting, internal 
controls or auditing matters.

e. Serious conflict of interest without disclosure, 
resulting in material gain.

f. Acts which mislead, deceive, manipulate, coerce 
or fraudulently influence any internal or external 
accountant or auditor in connection with the 
preparation, examination, audit or review of any 
financial statements or records of SIAS.

g. Abuse of power or authority, for example, 
CEO asking Finance Manager to make false 
declarations on company’s accounts.

h. Physical and emotional bullying by colleague.

i. Sexual harassment:

 • Physical harassment (sexual gestures, 
inappropriate touching etc.).

 • Verbal harassment (sexual comments / jokes, 
asking for sexual favours etc.).

 • Visual harassment (showing derogatory or 
pornographic materials etc.).

 • Any other serious improper matters which may 
cause financial or non-financial loss to SIAS or 
damage to SIAS’ reputation.

j. Fraud or the making of fraudulent statements to 
members of the public and regulatory authorities.

k. Concealing information about any malpractice or 
misconduct.

l. Intentional provision of incorrect information to 
public bodies.

PROTECTION AGAINST REPRISAL

SIAS recognises that the decision to report a concern 
can be a difficult one to make, not least, because 
of the fear of reprisal from those responsible for 
the alleged malpractice. SIAS will not tolerate 
harassment or victimisation and will take all possible 
action to protect anyone who raises a concern in 
good faith.

However, SIAS does not condone frivolous, 
mischievous or malicious allegations and anyone 
making such allegations may face disciplinary action.

CONFIDENTIALITY

SIAS requires the whistleblower to identify himself 
/ herself when raising a concern or providing 
information. All concerns will be treated with the 
strictest confidentiality.
 
Exceptional circumstances under which information 
provided by the whistleblower could or would not be
treated with confidentiality include:

a. Where SIAS is under a legal obligation to 
disclose information provided.

b. Where the information is already in the public 
domain.
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c. Where the information is given on a strictly 
confidential basis to legal or auditing 
professionals for the purpose of obtaining 
professional advice.

d. Where the information is given to the police or 
other authorities for criminal investigation

PROCEDURES

Concerns may be raised with information provided to:

Private & Confidential

For the Attention of Audit Committee Chairman 
Securities Investors Association (Singapore)

7 Maxwell Road #05-03 MND Building Annexe B 
Singapore 069111
Email Address: audit_committee@sias.org.sg

Such reports are preferably made in writing, either in 
the form of a letter or email, and in detail setting out 
the background and history of events as well as the 
reason(s) for concern.

Assessment of the concern or information shall be 
made with due consideration given to the following 
factors:

a. Seriousness of the issue raised;

b. Credibility of the concern or information; and

c. Likelihood of confirming the concern or 
information from the attributable sources

Depending on the nature of the concern raised 
or information provided, the investigation will be 
conducted, involving one or more of the following 
individuals or entities:

a. The Audit Committee

b. The External Auditor, and / or

c. The Police or Commercial Affairs Department

The amount of contact between the whistleblower 
and the person(s) investigating the concern raised 
or information provided will be determined by the 
nature and clarity of the matter reported. Further 
information may be sought from the whistleblower 
during the course of the investigation. When the 
investigation is completed, the investigating officer(s) 
will report the findings to the Audit Committee for its 
necessary action.

If the whistleblower identifies himself / herself, the 
Audit Committee will look into the matter and will 
reply to the person within 2 weeks. If the message 
is anonymous there is no obligation for the Audit 
Committee to respond. The Audit Committee will 
decide if the report is deemed as whistleblowing 
based on the policy as stated above.

The Whistleblowing Policy is also published on the SIAS website.
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DISCLOSURE OF KEY REMUNERATION
Under the revised Code of Charities and IPCs 2017, it is recommended that charities disclose the remuneration 
of the three highest paid staff who each received remuneration exceeding $100,000, in bands of $100,000. 
SIAS has chosen to disclose the staff remuneration above $100,000 in bands of $50,000.

RESERVE POLICY
The reserves of the association provide financial stability and the means for the development of the association’s 
activities. The association has a target reserve ratio of one (1) and will strive to work towards this ratio by 
engaging in approved activities that are accretive to its bottom line. The Management Committee reviews the 
level of reserves regularly for the association’s continuing obligations.

AUDITORS
Internal Auditor : Shared Services for Charities (first appointed 2018) 

External Auditor : RSM Chio Lim LLP (first appointed 2015)

Audit Partner : Tan Wei Ling

DISCLOSURE OF OVERSEAS EXPENDITURE
There were no expenses incurred for any overseas travel.

Ratio of reserves 
to total operating 
expenditure  

Total unrestricted 
funds

2021
$1,781,345

2022

$2,428,515

2021
0.84

2022

0.99

Bands 2021

$350,001 - $400,000 0

$300,001 - $350,000 1

$250,001 - $300,000 0

$200,001 - $250,000 0

$150,001 - $200,000 0

$100,001 - $150,000 1
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Information is correct as at 30 Jun 2022.
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SIAS continues to review and refresh Membership initiatives, and ensures its membership database is updated. 
From 31 August 2021 to 30 November 2021, SIAS conducted an outreach campaign for its Founder Members 
to update their data. The rationale of this initiative was two-pronged - to enable active Founder Members to 
update their personal particulars and adhere to PDPA policy by removing inactive Founder Members from the 
membership database. To achieve our stipulated goals for this initiative and optimise the outreach success rate, 
the outreach schema included a quarter page print advertisement in the Straits Times, two rounds of direct email 
mailers, two SMS blasts and direct phone calls At the end of the Founder Membership Outreach Campaign, 
we garnered a total of 821 responses. These active Founder Members continue to enjoy free SIAS membership 
benefits and participate in SIAS-organised events on a regular basis.

SIAS welcomed six new companies who signed up as SIAS Associate Membership Sponsors namely Olam 
International Limited, Keppel Corporation Limited, Keppel DC REIT, Keppel REIT, Keppel Infrastructure Trust 
and Keppel Pacific Oak US REIT, bringing the total number of sponsors to 22. Shareholders and staff of 
the Associate Membership Sponsors are entitled to sign up for complimentary SIAS Associate Sponsored 
Membership. Marketing efforts were enhanced to boost the number of SIAS Associate Sponsored Members, 
allowing more investors to benefit from our initiatives.

Since 2021, SIAS pivoted towards all online webinars, continuing to extend its reach and activities.
SIAS organised a total of 150 activities reaching out to 31,241 participants.

Investor Education Investor Rights Corporate Governance Others Total

No. of Activities 107 32 9 2 150

No. of Attendees 20,445 7,686 2,949 161 31,241

YEAR IN 
REVIEW MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE’S 
ANNUAL 
REPORT

MEMBERSHIP
The total membership is 13,102 as follows:

5DISTINGUISHED 
HONORARY 274 ORDINARY

10,593 1,409ASSOCIATE STUDENT

821FOUNDER
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From macro-economic analysis and asset allocation to sector and industry rotation, and finally security selection 
and technical analysis. Partnering with SGX and other market participants to provide a diversity of market 
viewpoints, our programmes have attracted new audiences.

An overview of SIAS’ Investor Education framework and activities can be seen below:

INVESTOR 
EDUCATION
Investor education is a key pillar of SIAS’ mission to help retail investors make 
informed investing decisions. With the addition of a permanent market technician 
to cover technical analysis, our investor education programmes now cover the full 
spectrum of the investing process. 

• Weekly Market Review

• Monthly ASK SIAS

• Market Outlook Seminars

• Corporate Connect Seminars

• Investor Forum Seminars

• Mata-Bytes 

• SPAC IPO Briefing with VTAC 

• Digesting Stewardship, ESG & 
Governance 

• The New Waves of 
Shareholder Engagement in 
Singapore 

• SIAS-PA: Webinar on 
Cryptocurrency 

• Weekly Market Updates 
(eNewsletter)

KEEP UPDATED

• Basics of Financial Statement 
Analysis 

• Introduction to Exchange 
Traded Funds (ETFs) 

• Introduction to Leveraged 
Products 

• Introduction to Fixed Income 
(Bonds) 

• Introduction to Real Estate 
Investment Trusts (REITs)

• Introduction to SPACs 

• Understanding Enviromental, 
Social and Governance (ESG) 
for Investing 

GETTING STARTED
Introductory course

• 1. Portfolio Creation and 
Asset Allocation for Long Term 
Wealth 

• Understanding Analysts’ 
Reports and Recommendations 

• Financial Analysis: Evaluate 
Financial Statements 

• Advanced Technical Analysis 

ADVANCING 
INVESTMENT KNOWLEDGE

Intermediate course

YEAR IN
REVIEW
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     WEEKLY MARKET 
     REVIEW

This weekly session provides 
insights on how current market 
and economic updates, as well as 
political and business news, impact 
investors and their investments. 
The Weekly Market Review is 
broadcast via Facebook Live 
and participants can interact via 
Facebook to have their queries 
addressed by the speakers.

YEAR IN
REVIEW

ASK SIAS

This is a monthly interactive session 
for SIAS Members to ask our team 
of research analysts investment-
related questions, and have our 
research analysts provide in-depth 
analyses and review. 

KEEP UPDATED
WITH SIAS
SIAS’ Investor Education continues to provide comprehensive and timely 
information relevant to today’s financial markets. From answering the 
typical “DBS can buy or not” type of question to “what are the risks of 
trading Bitcoin”, SIAS’ Investor Education covers it all.

 Benjamin Goh, Foo Fang Boon and Sunny Soh, Weekly Market 
Review Team

 Foo Fang Boon and Benjamin Goh, 
Panel of SIAS Research Analysts.

99%of attendees rated the overall session 

as Excellent
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    MARKET OUTLOOK

This programme keeps investors 
updated on current market trends 
as well as highlights relevant and 
potential stocks for investors to 
consider investing in given the 
current investment climate. Industry 
experts are invited to this webinar 
to share their views and provide 
valuable insights to investors.

 Guest Speaker Terence Wong from Azure Capital

    CORPORATE CONNECT

 Corporate Connect featuring Far East Orchard Limited on 10 May 2022.

 Corporate Connect featuring Halycon Agri on 
18 January 2022.

In FY2022, the number of 
participating companies was 20. 
The Corporate Connect sessions 
attracted more than 1,000 
attendees and over 7,000 views 
on SIAS’ social media channels. 
Companies such as Frasers 
Logistics & Commercial Trust, 
Enviro-Hub Holdings, Halcyon 
Agri Corporation, StarHub, IHH 
Healthcare, Far East Orchard 
and UOB Asset Management 
participated this year.

Corporate Connect, one of SIAS’ 
regular webinars for 9 consecutive 
years, is a bi-monthly webinar 
supported by Singapore Exchange 
Limited (SGX). This platform connects 
investors and senior management 
of public listed companies in 
Singapore, providing investors 
with in-depth company insights 
to determine the profitability of 
investing in the companies to boost 
investment returns. A SGX Market 
Strategist also provides independent 
views of the market outlook during 
the sessions.
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    INVESTOR FORUM 
    - REGULATORY CHANGES - 

This programme is a platform to 
discuss regulatory and governance 
related issues affecting retail 
investors. Industry experts are invited 
to this forum to share their views 
and insights. Investors took the 
opportunity to discuss issues and 
market changes relating to their 
investments. Investors were also 
updated on the latest regulatory 
changes Discussion topics included 
the benefits and risk factors 
associated with investing in SPACs 
and shareholders’ responsibility for 
good corporate governance and 
success of listed companies.
INVESTOR FORUM: 

INVESTOR FORUM: DEEP DIVE INTO THE “DOS AND DON’TS” OF 
INVESTING IN SPACS

90%of the attendees rated the content of 

the workshop to be just right

 Panel Discussion: What are Your Rights when a Company 
Gets into Trouble?

 Answering Questions on “Dos and Don’ts” of Investing in SPACs

Special Purpose Acquisition 
Companies (SPACs) are hybrid 
investing vehicles combining the 
characteristics of a traditional IPO 
with elements of private equity 
investing. Wildly popular in the 

US, SPACs were only recently 
introduced into the Singapore 
market.

In this seminar, we discussed how 
SPACs work, explored the benefits 

and risk factors in investing in 
SPACs, what Singapore investors 
should look out for and how 
SPACs can be a helpful addition 
to a retail investor’s portfolio.
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 Answering Questions on Are shareholders responsible for good corporate 
governance and success of listed companies?

INVESTOR FORUM: ARE SHAREHOLDERS RESPONSIBLE 
FOR GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SUCCESS OF 
LISTED COMPANIES? 

Over the last 22 years, SIAS has 
observed that the local financial 
market has shifted from a merit-
based, prescriptive regulatory 
regime to one that is primarily 
disclosure-based.

It is incumbent on investors to be 
knowledgeable and well informed, 
and play a role in enforcing good 
corporate governance. 

For a company to be progressive, 
successful, and yet maintain high 
standards of good corporate 
governance, all stakeholders need 
to play their roles well. 

95% of the attendees felt that the 

content was good

In this investor forum, SIAS 
therefore, discussed and 
expounded the roles of the Board, 
Directors, Management, and 
Shareholders.

MATA-BYTES: FUNDAMENTALS  
OF CRYPTOCURRENCY  
INVESTING AND HOW TO LOOK 
OUT FOR RELATED SCAMS

 Mata-Bytes: Hosted by SUPT Gerald Tay and joined by 
Benjamin Goh, Head, Research & Investor Education, SIAS

In collaboration with Punggol Neighbourhood Police Centre, 
this lunchtime investor education episode, on Facebook Live, 
created public awareness on the risks and dangers investors 
should be cognisant of when investing in cryptocurrency and 
how to look out for related scams. 
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    SPAC IPO BRIEFING 
    WITH VTAC

Vertex Technology Acquisition 
Corporation Ltd (VTAC) is 
Singapore’s first SPAC Initial 
Public Offering (IPO). Investors 
learned more about the company 
by posing questions to the senior 
management.

 Retail Investors get to meet with 
the Senior Management of VTAC as 
they share more about the IPO

ESG is the flavour of the decade, 
Governance is the daily bread 
& butter and Stewardship 
oversees the long-term health 
of companies. Too much ESG 
(like MSG) and just eating 
bread & butter are unhealthy. 
All three – ESG, Governance 
and Stewardship need to come 
together in the right proportions. 

Since the introduction of the 
Singapore Stewardship Principles 
for Responsible Investors (SSP 1.0) 
in 2016, capital markets have 
undergone profound changes. As 
the world shifts towards a more 
inclusive stakeholder capitalism, 
attention on and concern over 
how capital markets impact ESG 
have intensified. 

Given the evolving developments, 
it is timely and relevant 
to upgrade to SSP 2.0. A 
12-member Steering Committee, 
led by Stewardship Asia Centre 
and supported by the Monetary 
Authority of Singapore and 
Singapore Exchange, has worked 
on SSP 2.0 to ensure that the 
stewardship principles drive best 
practices for responsible investors. 

This webinar shared the inside 
stories of the SSP 2.0 Steering 
Committee and how SSP 2.0 
will take care of the long-term 
health of companies, with the right 
dash of ESG and freshly baked 
Governance.

DIGESTING  
STEWARDSHIP,  
ESG & GOVERNANCE

 Panellists for Digesting Stewardship, ESG & Governance
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 An event organised for the corporate professionals to share updates 
to shareholder engagement activities

 How does Bitcoin or Cryptocurrency actually work?

THE NEW WAVES OF SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT IN 
SINGAPORE

In 2020 when Covid-19 
emerged, the regulators fast-
tracked legislation to allow listed 
companies to hold their AGMs 
either virtually or in a hybrid 
fashion.

Now, with almost 2 years’ worth 
of experience, it is timely to discuss 
the lessons learnt and highlight 
areas of possible improvement 
at AGMs and EGMs. Recently, 
companies are required to 
answer all the questions from 
shareholders before the deadline 
to submit proxy votes. For some 
corporate actions, companies are 
also required to have a Virtual 

Information Session (VIS) to take 
shareholders’ questions live. 

Attendees at this session learned 
how companies can be prepared 

for the new wave of shareholder 
engagement and what shareholders 
can expect from companies for 
more quality communication.

SIAS-PA:  
WEBINAR ON 
CRYPTOCURRENCY

2021 was the year in which 
bitcoin was accepted as a 
legitimate asset class. Financial 
regulators in the US and Canada 
finally approved bitcoin-related 
exchange-traded products, El 
Salvador adopted bitcoin as legal 
tender, institutional investors, high 
net worth individuals and family 
offices poured billions into bitcoin 
and Elon Musk moved its price 
with just one tweet.

But how does bitcoin or 
cryptocurrency actually work? 
What is the underlying technology 
that powers it? What drives its price 

and what will 2022 look like? In 
this seminar, we discussed:

• How blockchain works

• What is cryptocurrency

• Cryptocurrency’s price 
behaviour, volatility and risk 
factors

• The importance of using a 
reputable crypto exchange and 
wallet

• What 2022 holds for bitcoin
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SIAS WEEKLY MARKET UPDATES 
(ENEWSLETTER)

YEAR IN
REVIEW

SIAS continued to provide weekly 
market updates and monthly 
summary roundups written by 
former veteran Senior Business 
Times journalist R. Sivanithy via 
email and SIAS’ website. SIAS 
Market Updates are independent 
reports to help investors stay 
current on market developments 
and facilitate investors making 
informed decisions, especially in 
the current geo-political landscape 
affected by the trade war 

between USA and China and 
the continued global Covid-19 
pandemic. 

The three top-read articles were 
‘Joint effort by Temasek, MAS, 
EDB & SGX to boost stock market 
was main feature in an otherwise 
nondescript week’, ‘Banks help 
keep the STI afloat as Wall St 
tumbled’ and ‘Positive Omicron 
developments help markets 
rebound’.

 SIAS Market Reports sent to 
subscribers on a weekly basis every 
Monday

GETTING
STARTED 
Our free of charge introductory courses are immensely popular. Covering a 
wide variety of topics from basic product knowledge to investing and portfolio 
management techniques, these courses have helped thousands of new investors 
to navigate the sometimes choppy waters of capital markets.

BASICS OF FINANCIAL   
STATEMENT ANALYSIS

Specially created for absolute 
beginners and investors with 
no accounting background, this 
foundational course explains what 
goes into the “big three” financial 
statements: income statement, 
balance sheet and cash flow 
statement and how to identify red 
flags. Using real financial statements, 
this course focused on teaching 
straight-forward techniques so 
that every investor can read the 
annual reports of their favourite 
stocks with confidence. 100%of the attendees felt that the talk 

was good and relevant

 Benjamin Goh, Head, Research & Investor Education, SIAS teaching 
the retail investors at this free introductory course
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 Benjamin Goh, Head, Research & Investor Education, SIAS 
explaining Futures Contract

 Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) represent a milestone in the 
evolution of financial products

INTRODUCTION TO EXCHANGE TRADED 
FUNDS (ETFS) 

Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) 
represent a milestone in the 
evolution of financial products. 
Combining the diversification 
benefits of unit trust funds and the 
liquidity of stocks, ETFs are cost 
efficient products that provide 
exposure to whatever markets, 
asset classes or sectors that the 
investor desires. 

Already comprising a substantial 
portion of trading in US markets, 
the variety and size of ETFs are set 
to continue growing both overseas 
and in the Singapore market. 83%of the attendees rated excellent

for the overall programme 

100%of the attendees felt that the talk 
was good and relevant

INTRODUCTION TO 
LEVERAGED PRODUCTS

Futures and options contracts are 
derivative products that provide 
trading opportunities to the savvy 
trader, regardless of whether the 
market is going up, going down or just 
plain directionless.

Contracts for Differences (CFDs) 
are retail products that combine the 
liquidity of the underlying security 
and the flexibility of a derivative 
product. Together, futures, options and 
CFDs are popular and cost-efficient 
leveraged products for traders to take 
a view on how the market may 
perform.
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100% of the attendees felt that the 
content was good

95%of the attendees felt that the 
content was good

Fixed income securities or bonds 
are traditional assets which provide 
stable income to long-term investors. 
This introductory workshop explains 
how bonds work, the risks inherent 
in bond investing, the myriad of 
bond issues available, how to 
read bond yield measures and the 
differences between retail and 
institutional bonds. 

After participating in this workshop, 
participants will have a basic 
understanding of bonds and the 
Singapore bond market.

INTRODUCTION TO FIXED INCOME 
(BONDS)

 Characteristics of a Bond

 Foo Fang Boon, Research Associate, SIAS introducing different REIT 
sectors

INTRODUCTION TO REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT 
TRUSTS (REITS)

Real estate investment trusts or 
REITs have gained in popularity 
over the years as both an integral 
component of long-term investing 
as well as for their relatively high 
dividends.

This foundational course introduced 
investors to the basic fundamentals 
of what REITs are, how they are 
structured, how they operate and 
how they can be used as part 
of a well-diversified portfolio. 
This course also discussed how 
REITs can be used in a long-term 
portfolio focused on dividend 
returns.
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100%of the attendees rated the content of
the workshop to be just right

 Introductory course on SPACs

INTRODUCTION 
TO SPACS

Special Purpose Acquisition 
Company (SPAC) is one of the 
hottest trends on Wall Street in 
the recent years. In Singapore, 
SGX launched SPAC listing and 
framework in September 2021, 
paving an expansion into the 
local equity market. SPAC is a 
different investment vehicle from 
the traditional IPO. Investors should 
be equipped with knowledge to 
understand SPAC and make an 
informed decision before investing 
in a SPAC. This introductory course 
explained how SPAC works, and 
the potential gains and risks in 
SPAC investing.

Incorporating Environmental, Social 
and Governance (ESG) factors into 
investment decisions has emerged 
as a megatrend in recent years. 
Mirroring the shift to grow and 
accelerate green or sustainability-

linked investing arising from 
heightened environmental, social 
and governance awareness 
and concerns, investors today 
are aligning socially responsible 
investment philosophies by 

integrating ESG considerations in 
a green effort to generate positive 
returns for themselves and society 
at large.

Joined by *Del Monte Pacific 
Limited’s Chief Corporate Officer, 
Mr Ignacio Sison who elaborated 
on Del Monte’s ESG initiatives, 
Mr Loh Uantchern, VP, SIAS 
and CEO (Asia Pacific), Black 
Sun, shared key takeaways 
from how to get started on ESG 
investing to analysing companies’ 
ESG Annual Report data in this 
members only webinar. 

*Del Monte Pacific Limited - 
2021 Winner of SIAS Singapore 
Corporate Governance Award for 
Mid Cap.

UNDERSTANDING ENVIROMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) 
FOR INVESTING (MEMBERS ONLY)

 ESG thought leaders - Mr Ignacio Siso and Mr Loh Uantchern

100%
of the attendees rated 

speakers’ delivery, presentation and 
engagement excellent.
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An investor may invest in many 
different stocks and may be quite 
familiar with how individual stocks 
perform but most investors do 
not actually monitor the overall 
performance and risk of their stock 
portfolios. This is because portfolio 
creation and management are 
different from stock analysis. 

ADVANCING
INVESTMENT 
KNOWLEDGE 
Our paid workshops provide a learning pathway for retail investors 
to gain a more intermediate understanding of specific topics in investing. 
These workshops are provided at a minimum fee to defray the costs of the 
external trainer’s time.

PORTFOLIO CREATION AND ASSET ALLOCATION FOR LONG TERM 
WEALTH – PARTS 1 & 2

100%of the attendees agreed the objective 
of the webinar was met

 The basic principles of modern portfolio theory, asset allocation and risk management

This foundational course introduced 
the basic principles of modern 
portfolio theory, asset allocation 
and risk management. By 
calculating expected portfolio 
performance and risk, this course 

taught participants how to analyse 
their stock portfolio using the 
same approach employed by 
professional fund managers rather 
than relying on ‘gut feeling’.
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 James Leong, SIAS Speaker 

Almost all brokerages provide 
retail investors access to analysts’ 
research reports. Research reports 
help retail investors understand the 
profitability and financial health of 
a company and saves investors the 
time, effort and expertise needed 
to read and analyse the company’s 
annual report and quarterly filings. 
But do we actually understand 
the research reports themselves? 
How do we know what are the 
assumptions made and the math 
that go into the analysis? What are 
the key things to look out for in a 
research report?

This  introductory course 
demystified stock research reports. 

UNDERSTANDING ANALYSTS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS - 
PARTS 1 & 2

Company annual reports provide 
information on the business and 
financial health of a company 
to shareholders and investors. 
Understanding the annual report 
of the company you invest in can 
help you to better understand and 
analyse the company’s financial 
performance. 

As an investor, who knows how 
to read financial statements, you 
can also leverage the information 
to decide if it is worth continuing 
investing in the company.

In this 3-day workshop, the trainer 
adopted a case study approach 
to help investors read an annual 
report effectively. He guided them 

100%of the attendees rated the content of
the workshop to be just right

With a combination of both theory 
and hands-on practice, investors 
were armed with the basic 

understanding of what goes into a 
typical research report and how 
best to read it.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: EVALUATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
- PARTS 1, 2 & 3

95%of the attendees felt that the 
content was good

step by step from the basic to 
advanced level. The workshop 
provided investors with the right 

knowledge to help them select their 
investment correctly and make them 
more confident investors.
ADVANCED TECHNICAL 

 What are the key things to look out for in a research report?
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ADVANCED TECHNICAL ANALYSIS - PARTS 1 & 2

91%of the attendees felt that the 
content was good

Technical analysis is an established 
method and skill for making 
objective investment and trading 
decisions in the financial markets. 
This Advanced Technical Analysis 
Course was designed to help 
traders seize opportunities in the 
financial markets and profit in a 
shorter time through the applications 
of advanced technical indicators. 
It involved the ability to use past 
price movements to forecast future 
movements when buying and selling 
stocks. Investors learned effective 
ways to predict the next market 
moves and mastered the use of 
advanced technical indicators to 
evaluate the volatility, volume, and 
momentum of the market. 

 Sunny Soh, SIAS Speaker 

 SYC Welcome Night, 
February 2022

SIAS YOUTH 
CHAPTER

The SIAS Youth Chapter (SYC) 
was conceptualised to create 
financial and investor education 
opportunities to benefit the youth 
community. The SYC initiative aims 
to support financial literacy and 
foster good financial habits among 
the youths from Institutes of Higher/
Continual Learning in Singapore. 

Partnering investment clubs from 
National University of Singapore 
(NUS), Singapore Institute of 
Management (SIM), Singapore 
Management University (SMU) 
and Yale-NUS College, SIAS 
provides complimentary student 
membership to the investment 
club members, and advocates the 

relevance of investor knowledge 
and awareness.

To foster collaboration and 
cohesion among SYC members, 
SIAS organised a networking 
session with our partner investment 
clubs in February 2022.
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INVESTOR
RIGHTS

SIAS continued to engage with listed 
companies through Virtual Information 
Sessions (VIS), fireside chats, 
commentaries and press releases to 
help minority investors make informed 
decisions and stay updated on various 
corporate issues. With the continued 
disruption of businesses and the 
economy in Singapore resulting from 
the Covid-19 pandemic, there was a 
greater need for companies to engage 
with their shareholders/unitholders. 

 15 July 2021 Eagle Hospitality Real Estate 
Investment Trust

 19 July 2021 Singapore Telecommunications 
Limited

 28 July 2021 CapitaLand Limited

 6 August 2021 Sembcorp Marine Limited

 25 August 2021 Keppel Corporation Limited

 26 August 2021 Singapore Press Holdings Limited

 12 November 2021 Singapore Post Limited

 22 November 2021 Keppel DC REIT

 30 November 2021 Keppel Corporation Limited

 3 December 2021 ESR-REIT & ARA LOGOS 
Logistics Trust

 13 January 2022 ESR-REIT

 14 January 2022 ARA LOGOS Logistics Trust

 19 January 2022 OUE Lippo Healthcare Limited

 20 January 2022 First Real Estate Investment Trust 

 3 February 2022 ESR-REIT

 3 February 2022 ARA LOGOS Logistics Trust

 SIAS-Frasers Hospitality Trust Fireside-chat held on 24 June 2022

fireside chats and VIS to ensure that shareholders/
unitholders are better informed about their 
companies’ business plans and changes. As the world 
continued to ride the pandemic waves, the sessions 
were all held virtually.

Summary of Shareholder Engagement Activities

 9 February 2022 Olam International Limited
 24 February 2022 Lendlease Global Commercial REIT

 9 March 2022 ESR-REIT

 10 March 2022 ARA LOGOS Logistics Trust

 11 March 2022 Singapore Press Holdings Limited & 
Cuscaden Peak Pte Ltd

 6 April 2022 Keppel Infrastructure Trust

 6 April 2022 CapitaLand China Trust

 12 April 2022 CapitaLand Integrated Commercial 
Trust

 14 April 2022 Sabana Industrial Real Estate 
Investment Trust

 19 April 2022 Ascott Residence Trust

 20 April 2022 CapitaLand Investment Limited

 9 May 2022 Mapletree North Asia Commercial 
Trust

 10 May 2022 Mapletree Commercial Trust

 20 June 2022 Sembcorp Marine Limited  

 24 June 2022 Frasers Hospitality Trust

  Pre-AGM       Virtual Information Session       Fireside Chat

In FY2022, the number of shareholder engagement 
activities conducted was 31. We saw more 
companies approaching SIAS to engage their 
shareholders/unitholders through dialogue sessions, 

     SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
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 Kopi with CapitaLand Invest-
ment Limited held on 20 April 2022 
via live streaming onsite.

     DISPUTES AND COMPLAINTS RESOLUTION

SIAS received 260 emails pertaining to investment-
related matters and investor rights issues over the 
course of the year from members and investors, a 
10% decrease from 2021. 

As the investment landscape transformed to adapt 
to the impact triggered by the ongoing Covid-19 
pandemic, SIAS received a number of emails in 
relation to the winding up of Hyflux, the liquidation 
of Eagle Hospitality Trust and SPH shareholders’ 
concern over its restructuring plan. The other emails 

received were primarily related to issues surrounding 
merger & acquisitions, delisting, disgruntlement over 
broker services, and investment disputes regarding 
non-regulated investment products. 

SIAS remains resolute in advocating a win-win 
approach of ‘in the boardroom and not the 
courtroom’ engagement policy as we tirelessly 
champion for minority shareholders in disputes and 
complaints resolution.

     PRE-ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
     (PRE-AGM) ENGAGEMENT

Pre-AGM Engagement is 
organised by SIAS for companies’ 
shareholders/unitholders to meet 
with the management ahead of 
the companies’ Annual General 
Meetings (AGMs) to better 
understand their latest financial 
year performance and company 
growth plans, giving them the 
opportunity to also raise any 
queries and concerns. SIAS 
continued to organise briefings 

VIRTUAL INFORMATION 
SESSION (VIS)

 SIAS-Olam 
International Limited 
Virtual Information 
Session held on 9 
February 2022.

SIAS also worked with listed 
companies to organise VIS prior to 
their Extraordinary General Meeting 
(EGM). As an independent body, 
SIAS hosted and moderated the 
event to allow 2-way exchange of 
questions and information between 
management and their shareholders/

unitholders. This is in line with the 
Singapore Exchange Regulation’s 
(“SGX RegCo”) requirement1 for 
companies “to demonstrate the 
best practice of publicly addressing 
shareholders’ substantial and 
relevant questions received prior to 
the general meeting on SGXNET 

with the shareholders/unitholders 
of Singtel, Keppel Corporation, 
CapitaLand Investment and its 
subsidiaries. 

and corporate website as well 
as at any VIS before the closing 
date and time for the lodgement 
of the proxy forms”. Through the 
VIS, shareholders/unitholders can 
get clarity on the rationale of the 
corporate actions directly from the 
management before placing their 
votes at the EGM.

1Source: https://corp.sgx.com/media-
centre/20211216-regulators-column-
what-sgx-regco-expects-conduct-
general-meetings-amid)
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     COMMENTARIES AND PRESS STATEMENTS

SIAS has been at the forefront championing the rights of the investors and shareholders. In corporate actions, 
investors lack information or in some cases, are overwhelmed with the immensity information, and are unable 
to make informed investment-related decisions. SIAS, therefore, provides guidance in the way of commentaries 
and updates through press statements which are published in the media to aid investors to look at the corporate 
actions carefully. 

 Press Statement: Sustainability as key criteria in the 
SIAS Corporate Governance Award

 Commentary on 5 things 
to note about SPACs

 Press Statement: SPH Offer – Questions to 
Cuscaden Peak Pte. Ltd & Keppel Corporation Limited

 Commentary on 
Mandatory Hybrid 
AGMs and ‘live’ voting

A total of 18 press statements and 14 commentaries were issued by SIAS. 
The issues were mainly on restructuring, de-listing, merger, and acquisition 
of listed companies which have a large base of minority shareholders. 
SIAS also provided guidance and views on the listing of Special Purpose 
Acquisition Companies (SPACs) on Singapore Stock Exchange, how 
investors need to play their part on sustainability and position on hybrid 
AGMs, and live voting for shareholder engagement. 

Scan to view all 
commentaries and  
press statements:
https://sias.org.sg/ 
latest-updates/
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
     Q&A ON ANNUAL REPORTS

The Q&A on Annual Reports initiative maintained 
its momentum for the 5th year for FY2022. SIAS 
continues to help shareholders to raise the quality of 
the virtual AGMs by raising questions on the annual 
reports. 

We see a good improvement this year for the Q&A 
initiative with a positive response rate of 78%, an 
increase from 72% in the previous year. This could be 
attributed to the familiarity of SIAS sending questions 
to the companies in the past 4 years and now, 
recognised as a best practice/”SOP” to reply before 
the AGM and our team’s continuous engagement 
efforts to reach out to the companies. Also, with 
effect from 1 January 2022, SGX RegCo mandated 
companies to answer shareholders’ queries before the 
deadline for shareholders to submit proxy votes. This 
means that shareholders can factor in the company’s 
responses to their answers in their voting decisions.

Main Focus Areas
The areas covered are focused on strategic matters, 
operations, financial, corporate governance, and 

sustainability. There was an increased focus on 
sustainability, which included questions on a company’s 
commitment to net-zero emissions, reduction of scope 
1, scope 2 and scope 3 greenhouse gases (GHG), 
decarbonisation and even greenwashing.

More than 750 main and sub questions were sent 
to the 250 companies with appropriate context 
provided to the companies so that they do not just 
refer SIAS and shareholders to their annual report. 
The questions were broad ranging and tailored 
specifically for each company depending on their 
unique business and circumstances.

Here are some of the key observations from SIAS’ analysis

• Adequacy of internal audit
 A single individual was in charge of the internal audit for the group which had  

21 offices and 13 warehousing facilities in several key Asian markets, and over 
5,000 customers. Revenue for the year was US$895.9 million. SGX RegCo had also 
queried the company on the adequacy of the IA following their responses to SIAS. 

 https://links.sgx.com/FileOpen/AGM_28April22_Responses_to_Questions_SIAS.ashx?App=Announcement&FileID=713128

• Material variance between audited and unaudited financial statements
 The company disclosed material variances every year for the past 7 years. Questions 

were asked of the audit committee and the in-house financial reporting team.

 https://links.sgx.com/FileOpen/GV_Response_SIAS%20Question.ashx?App=Announcement&FileID=713715 



2 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T   •   2 0 2 1 / 2 0 2 2
55

YEAR IN
REVIEW
YEAR IN
REVIEW

Quality Of The Responses 
SIAS received positive feedback from the 
shareholders on this initiative when the companies 
made the effort to address the questions at their 
AGM. In addition, companies appreciated the 
well-researched questions and some companies 
made use of the opportunity to engage SIAS 
and its shareholders in a meaningful manner. It is 
also encouraging that companies’ responses have 
improved not just in quantity, but also quality at 
AGMs. As SIAS’ questions are usually broken up into 
sub-questions, more often than not, most companies 
have taken the effort to reply to each and every 
sub-question. 

We continue to observe that the level and quality 
of engagement with companies have deepened in 
the past year. More companies made stand-alone 
announcements on SGXNet with titles such as 
“Responses to questions from SIAS in relation to the 
AGM”. Selected questions have been picked by the 
media, financial blogs, and forums. 

You can find all the Q&As on Annual Reports 
published on SIAS website www.sias.org.sg/3qs.

• No show by chairman at AGMs
 The chairman appeared to be absent from AGMs for years and did not appear to 

be committed to attend the company’s AGMs. 

 https://sias.org.sg/media/qareport/Q&As%20on%20AR_Pacific%20Century%20Regional%20Developments%20Limited%20
2022.pdf

• Management/board’s oversight after a waste management company 
was fined twice for illegal discharge 

 A waste management company was fined a second time for illegal discharge 
into public sewers by the PUB. The company’s subsidiary in Singapore had also 
tampered with the monitoring equipment to avoid detection by PUB. 

 https://sias.org.sg/media/qareport/Q&As%20on%20AR_NSL%20Ltd%202022.pdf

• Company giving shareholders just 1 working day to send in their 
questions

 SGX RegCo guidance was for companies to provide at least 7 days after the notice 
of annual general meeting. 

 https://sias.org.sg/media/qareport/Q&As%20on%20AR_Spackman%20Entertainment%20Group%20Limited%202022.pdf

• Company not factoring in SGX RegCo’s guidance on the use of two-
tier votes

 Company NC highlighted that the length of service should not determine the 
effectiveness of independence of an independent director and the continuing 
contributions from the director in benefitting the board and the company while 
not giving sufficient consideration to RegCo’s guidance on using the two-tier vote 
sparingly to facilitate progressive renewal and succession planning of the board. 

 https://links.sgx.com/FileOpen/GV_Response_SIAS%20Question.ashx?App=Announcement&FileID=713715
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Annually, SIAS conducts research on listed 
companies’ corporate governance (CG) performance 
and publishes the ranking of companies in 5 bands. 
For the first time, corporate sustainability (CS) has 
been incorporated in the research as sustainability 
disclosures are now an integral part of good 
corporate governance practices. 

The CG and CS scores are computed based on 
the STARS and SMART frameworks, respectively, 
with CG taking 60% and CS taking 40% of the total 
score. The STARS framework comprises Shareholders’ 
rights and equitable treatment, Transparency and 
disclosure, Accountability and audit, Responsibilities 
of the board and Stakeholders’ roles. The SMART 
framework includes Scope and Statement, Material 
ESG Factors, Actions and Achievements, and 
Reporting Framework.

The frameworks are also used to award companies 
at the SIAS Investors’ Choice Awards. The full set of 
the questions and ranking of the companies can be 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RESEARCH 

found on SIAS website, https://sias.org.sg/corporate-
governance-ratings/. The research is conducted 
by knowledge partner NUS CGS (Centre for 
Governance and Sustainability). 

Overview of the results 
The overall results for the new SCGA incorporating 
sustainability assessment in 2021 show that on 
average, big sized companies which had a market 
capitalisation of S$1 billion and above gained 
the highest SCGA score at 70.3%. In comparison, 
medium-sized companies (with a market capitalisation 
between S$300 million to less than S$1 billion) and 
small-sized companies (with a market capitalisation 
less than S$300 million) score an average of 61.6% 
and 59.2%, respectively.

Following a similar ranking, the CS Scores of the 
big companies took the highest value of 77.7%. 
Meanwhile, medium-sized companies had a lower 
score of 71.8%, with the small-sized companies 
following closely at 71.7%.

Note
1. The score is out of 100
2. The SCGA Overall Score comprises 60% CG Score and 40% CS Score.
3. The sample size for this study is 498 publicly listed companies comprising big cap (50), mid cap (30) and small cap (388).
Not all publicly-listed companies had a sustainability report as at 31 May 2021.

SCGA Scores in 2021 by CG, CS and Overall
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Breaking down the performance by sector, communication services scored the highest average CS score at 
76.1%, followed by industrial (73.9%), real estate (73.7%), and consumer staples (72.8%) respectively. Financial 
had the lowest average CS score, at 64.1%.

Corporate Governance 
• 99.0% of companies disclosed that their annual 

report had a statement by the board or audit 
committee on the adequacy of the internal 
controls and risk management systems. However, 
only 63.7% of them disclosed the process and 
framework used to assess the adequacy of 
internal control systems and risk management. 

• 99.0% of companies disclosed that they had a 
whistleblowing policy. However, only 51.9% of 
them had provision for anonymous reporting. 
[stakeholders’ roles] 

• 98.2% of companies stated that detailed 
information on each item in the agenda for the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) was disclosed in 
the Notice. 

• 98.0% of companies disclosed in their annual 
reports about the roles and responsibilities of the 
board of directors clearly. 

• 93.6% of companies had a policy requiring board 
members to abstain from participating in the 
board discussion on a particular agenda when 
they are conflicted. 

• 91.4% of companies disclosed the remuneration of 
top 5 executives. 

• 91.4% of companies had a website with a clearly 
dedicated Investor Relations link. 

• 89.4% of companies disclosed the criteria in 
assessing the board. 

• 85.9% of companies disclosed the process for 
board appraisal in detail. 

• 83.5% of companies disclosed that their 
shareholders were given the opportunity to 
ask questions in the most recent AGM and the 
questions and answers were recorded in the 
minutes. 

AREAS IN WHICH COMPANIES PERFORMED WELL 

Average Corporate Substainability Scores by Sector in 2021 (*) 

Financials
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(*) The score is out of 100.
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Corporate Sustainability 
• 100% of companies identified material 

Environmental, Social, and Corporate 
Governance (ESG) factors. However, only 90.1% 
of them mentioned the selection process of ESG 
factors and the reasons for selection. 

• 97.7% of companies disclosed the framework 
being adopted in the Sustainability report, 
in which, 95% of them used internationally 
recognised framework(s). 

• 90.3% of companies disclosed the reporting 
scope, which is the companies’ operations 
covered in the report. 

• 72.3% of companies disclosed non-financial 
targets for the next financial year. 

• 72.1% of companies had a board statement 
stating the board’s involvement in considering 
sustainability issue as part of strategic formulation. 

Corporate Governance 
• 6.8% of companies released their notice of AGM, 

as announced to the Exchange, at least 28 days 
before the date of the meeting. 

• 9.6% of companies disclosed that their board 
set the risk tolerance and that there was a risk 
management policy describing the tolerance for 
various classes of risk. 

• 12.7% of companies had the Remuneration 
Committee seeking expert advice/remuneration 
consultant at least periodically to decide on 
remuneration of all directors. 

• 22.7% of companies disclosed that they had limits 
on the number of directorships that can be held. 

• 29.7% of companies disclosed their policy on 
payment of dividends. 36.1% of companies 
disclosed the reasons where dividends were not 
paid. 

• 31.7% of companies disclosed their key risks and 
how these risks were assessed and managed. 

• 31.9% of companies disclosed their code of 
conduct or code of ethics in details. 

• 38.4% of companies disclosed their non-financial 
performance indicators. 

• 39.2% of companies paid dividends in an 
equitable and timely manner within 30 days 
after interim dividends were declared and final 
dividends were approved by shareholders at 
general meetings. 

• 48.8% of companies disclosed that they used 
media briefings or press conferences as a mode 
of communication. 

Corporate Sustainability 
• 25.8% of companies disclosed the linkage of top 

executive remuneration to the ESG performance. 

• 42.2% of companies mentioned the linkage 
between their disclosed non-financial targets and 
the financial performance. 

• 45.2% of companies disclosed reasons for 
selection of the framework adopted in the report. 

• 52.3% of companies consulted external 
stakeholders when determining ESG factors. 

• 54.4% of companies had a board statement 
stating the board’s involvement in overseeing 
management and monitoring of material ESG 
factors. 

YEAR IN
REVIEW

AREAS IN WHICH COMPANIES NEED IMPROVEMENT 
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LEADERSHIP DIVERSITY AND FIRM PERFORMANCE RESEARCH

SIAS advocates corporate transparency and 
progressive industry practices and, therefore, 
co-sponsored the study of leadership diversity and 
firm performance which is conducted by NUS CGS 
(Centre for Governance and Sustainability). This study 
is also co-sponsored by DBS and EDGE Strategy. 

The study examines the correlation between 
leadership diversity and firm performance, measured 
by ROA and the influence of leadership diversity and 
remuneration by gender on firm performance. 

The study covers all 577 SGX-Listed companies as of 
June 2021, and examines diversity among the board of 
directors and senior management (collectively referred 
to as ‘leadership’).  A comprehensive approach is 

adopted, incorporating four dimensions of diversity: 
gender, age, education and industry experience. Two 
indicators of diversity are employed: Blau’s Index and 
the proportion of leadership falling into the relevant 
categories for each diversity dimension.

Summary of the research report 
published in February 2022
Singapore’s progress in board gender diversity 
among listed companies can be seen in Figure 1 
and 2, which show a general trend of increased 
participation of women in board leadership and a 
decreased trend of all-male boards since 2013. 
This trend is even more pronounced in the top 100 
companies by market capitalisation.
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Figure 1: Board Gender Representation 
among Singapore-Listed Companies: 
Participation of Women on Boards

 Top 100 Companies

 All SGX-Listed Companies

Figure 2: Board Gender Representation 
among Singapore-Listed Companies:  
All-Male Boards
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Gender Diversity 
A distinct size effect can be seen with respect 
to board gender representation; 83% of big cap 
companies have at least one female board member, 
as compared to around 50% for small and mid cap 
companies.

Age Diversity 
In terms of age diversity, the largest representation 
is found in the 51-60 years and 61-70 years age 
groups (around 30% for each age group), followed 
by the 41-50 years age group (22%). However, if 
the companies are categorised according to market 
value, mid cap companies have a comparable 
share of leadership in the three age groups of 50 
years or younger, 51-60 years and 61-70 years 
(around 23%). Small cap companies also diverge 
from the overall pattern in having the highest share 
of younger leadership (26% of leadership aged 50 
years or younger), exceeding the share of those in 
the 51-60 years age group (24%) and the 61-70 
age group (21%).

Education Diversity 
On diversity in education, companies regardless 
of market cap have similar shares of basic-degree 
holders in leadership (around 45%). However, they 
diverge with regards to non-degree holders, with small 
cap companies having twice the share of non-degree 
holders in leadership as compared to large cap 
companies (15% vs. 7% respectively). The reverse trend 

is seen with regards to leadership with higher degrees; 
40% of big cap leadership have such degrees, notably 
higher than the 29% in small cap companies.

Industry Experience Diversity 
By contrast, the three categories of companies have 
relatively homogenous profiles in terms of the industry 
experience of their leadership. Very little difference 
can be seen, with small, mid and big cap companies 
all having around one-quarter of their leadership 
having up to 5 years’ experience, more than 10 to 
20 years, and over 20 years respectively.

In conclusion, this study found several significant relationships between leadership diversity and firm performance, 
as summarised in Figure 10.
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Figure 10: Impact of Leadership Diversity on Firm Performance: Summary

Percentage of Companies Big Cap Mid Cap Small Cap
having ≥ 1 female board member  

Has diversity policy 69.0% 37.3% 19.8%

No diversity policy 13.8% 16.0% 30.8%

Positive Impact
• Education diversity index

Positive Impact
• Age diversity index

Negative Impact
• Proportion of leaders 

> 60 years old

Positive Impact
• Propotion of leaders 

with > 10 years relevant 
industry experience

Positive Impact
• Gender diversity index
• Proportion of female leaders 

≥ 60 years old

Negative Impact
• Distance of PFL to gender 

parity point

INDUSTRY 
EXPERIENCE

GENDER

EDUCATION

AGE

DIMENSIONS 
OF DIVERSITY



2 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T   •   2 0 2 1 / 2 0 2 2
61

YEAR IN
REVIEW

SINGAPORE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE WEEK 2021

Corporate Governance Conference 2021
The theme for Corporate Governance Week (CG Week) was Sustainability Governance: The Next Step of 
Corporate Governance Framework. The Conference, Workshops and Forum aimed to focus on the development 
of a corporate governance framework that can be more conducive to sustainability impacts for listed companies.

 Panel Discussion on 
Sustainability Governance:The 
Next Step of Corporate 
Governance Framework.

 Panel Discussion on 
Covid-19 and the Breakdown of 
the Shareholder-Centric Model:  
An Inflection Point for Corporate 
Governance.

Very insightful
 event on emphasis of 

investor’s due 
dilligence

Diversity in 
panellists and opinions 

led to engaging 
discussions on the 

subject matters.

Excellent  
choice of speakers 

including international  
speakers.

Relevant 
content and excellent 

insights.
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Charity Governance Conference 2021
SIAS was indeed, once again, honoured to organise the  
Charity Governance Conference in collaboration with the Charity Council.

SIAS organised the Charity Governance Conference in 2021 using a virtual  
format. The virtual format enabled more participants to join in the conference,  
with 587 participants attending the conference themed Towards Excellent Governance –  
Building A Sustainable And Progressive Charity. The guest-of-honour, Mr Edwin Tong, Minister for Culture, 
Community and Youth, Second Minister for Law, delivered the keynote opening address.

Conference topics included From Crisis to Opportunity - How to be Resilient and Sustainable in Any Situation and 
what processes Charity Boards should put in place to review their strategies and remain relevant. The importance 
of Digitalisation and how charities can leverage robust risk management techniques to identify and mitigate the 
implications of digital transformation risks were also shared.

YEAR IN
REVIEW

Charity Governance Workshops
In conjunction with the Charity Governance Conference, a series of workshops were held to help charities 
improve their governance practices. The topics included Succession Planning and Human Resources Planning – 
for a Resilient Charity, Risk Disclosures – How Much Should a Charity Disclose of its Operations and Risks and 
Fraud Prevention, Anti-Money Laundering & Countering the Financing of Terrorism.

The virtual format of the event enabled, a total of 1,572 participants to attend and benefit from the three 
workshops.

 Panel Discussion on From Crisis to Opportunity –  
How to be Resilient - Sustainable in Any Situation.

 Presentation on From Crisis to Opportunity –  
How to be Resilient - Sustainable in Any Situation.

96% 
of the attendees felt the course 

met its objectives,  
and the concepts presented were 

useful and relevant to their  
course of work.

 Presentation on From Crisis to Opportunity –  
How to be Resilient & Sustainable in Any Situation.

 Panel Discussion on Fraud Prevention, Anti-Money 
Laundering – Countering the Financing of Terrorism.
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In the opinion of the Management Committee, 

(a) the accompanying statement of financial activities, statement of financial position, statement of cash flows, and 
notes thereto are drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects of the state of affairs of Securities 
Investors Association (Singapore) (the “association”) as at 30 June 2022 and the results and cash flows of the 
association for the reporting year then ended; and 

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the association will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they fall due.

The Management Committee approved and authorised these financial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Management Committee,

Jeyasegaram David @ David Gerald 
Jeyasegaram
President

Yong Foo Hong Melvin
Honorary Treasurer

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Securities Investors Association (Singapore) (the 
“association”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of 
financial activities, statements of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the reporting year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including the significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the association are properly drawn up in accordance 
with the provisions of the Societies Act 1966 (the “Societies Act”), the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant 
regulations (the “Charities Act and Regulations”), and the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“SFRS”) so 
as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the association as at 30 June 2022 and the 
results, changes in funds and cash flows of the association for the reporting year ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the association in accordance with the Accounting 
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants 
and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the statement by the Management Committee and annual report, but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified 
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial 
statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the 
Societies Act, the Charities Act and Regulations and the financial reporting standards, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the association’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the association or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management Committee are responsible for overseeing the association’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
association’s internal control. 

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the association to cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Management Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Management Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)

In our opinion,

(a) the accounting and other records required to be kept by the association have been properly kept in 
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Societies Act, and the 
Charities Act and Regulations; and

(b) the fund-raising appeals held during the reporting year have been carried out in accordance with Regulation 
6 of the Societies Regulations issued under the Societies Act and proper accounts and other records have 
been kept for the fund-raising appeals.

During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during the 
reporting year:

(a) the association has not used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required under 
Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

(b) the association has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions of a 
Public Character) Regulations. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Tan Wei Ling.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
REPORTING YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Notes
2022

$
2021

$

REVENUE 4 1,719,100 1,141,832

Interest income 5 1,460 5,900

Other income 6 1,363,570 1,855,381

ITEMS OF EXPENDITURE

Services consumed 7 (170,715) (83,383)

Depreciation expense 12 (22,754) (22,392)

Amortisation expense 13 (145,398) (145,398)

Employee benefits expense 8 (1,616,654) (1,534,033)

Finance costs 9 (4,861) (7,799)

Other operating expenses 10 (481,578) (335,289)

Total expenditure (2,441,960) (2,128,294)

Net income before tax 642,170 874,819

Income tax expense 11 – –

Net income for the year 22 642,170 874,819
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTSSECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT  30 JUNE 2022

Notes
2022

$
2021

$

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment 12 43,406 64,411

Right-of-use assets 13 157,450 302,848

Total non-current assets 200,856 367,259

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 14 1,227,882 239,190

Other assets 15 19,484 10,190

Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,676,236 1,836,703

Total current assets 2,923,602 2,086,083

Total assets 3,124,458 2,453,342

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities 20 15,291 163,455

Other liabilities, non-current 17 38,000 38,000

Total non-current liabilities 53,291 201,455

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities 20 148,164 145,164

Trade and other payables 18 260,927 223,196

Other liabilities, current 19 233,561 97,182

Total current liabilities 642,652 465,542

Total liabilities 695,943 666,997

NET ASSETS 2,428,515 1,786,345

FUNDS 

Unrestricted fund 22 2,428,515 1,781,345

Restricted fund 22 – 5,000

Total funds 2,428,515 1,786,345
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
REPORTING YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Unrestricted 
Fund 

$

Restricted  
Fund

$

Total
$

CURRENT YEAR

Opening balance at 1 July 2021 1,781,345 5,000 1,786,345

Changes in funds:

Net income for the year 647,170 (5,000) 642,170

Closing balance at 30 June 2022 2,428,515 – 2,428,515

PREVIOUS YEAR

Opening balance at 1 July 2020 911,526 – 911,526

Changes in funds:

Net income for the year 869,819 5,000 874,819

Closing balance at 30 June 2021 1,781,345 5,000 1,786,345

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL 
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
REPORTING YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022
$

2021
$

CASH FLOWS (USED IN) / FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income before tax 642,170 874,819

Depreciation of plant and equipment 22,754 22,392

Amortisation of right-of-use assets 145,398 145,398

COVID-19 related rent concessions – (11,871)

Interest expense 4,861 7,799

Interest income (1,460) (5,900)

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 813,723 1,032,637

Trade and other receivables (988,692) 15,960

Other assets (9,294) 251

Trade and other payables 37,731 (23,683)

Other liabilities 136,379 (64,442)

Cash restricted in use (Note 16) 5,000 (5,000)

Net cash flows (used in)/provided from operating activities (5,153) 955,723

CASH FLOWS (USED IN) / FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of plant and equipment (1,749) (11,022)

Interest income received 1,460 5,900

Net cash flows used in investing activities (289) (5,122)

CASH FLOWS (USED IN) / FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest expense paid (4,861) (7,799)

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (145,164) (130,355)

Net cash flows used in financing activities (150,025) (138,154)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (155,467) 812,447

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning balance 1,831,703 1,019,256

Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance (Note 16A) 1,676,236 1,831,703



2 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T   •   2 0 2 1 / 2 0 2 2
72

1. GENERAL
 Securities Investors Association (Singapore) (the “association”) is registered in Singapore under the Societies Act 

1966. The association is a charity registered under the Charities Act 1994 with effect from 8 May 2015. It is 
also an Institutions of a Public Character (“IPC”) registered under the Charities Act 1994 from 6 August 2021 
to 5 August 2024. The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar.

 The Management Committee approved and authorised these financial statements for issue on the date of 
the statement by the Management Committee.

 The principal activities of the association are those of providing forum discussion of investment interests of 
members; presenting views to Singapore Exchange and other appropriate bodies, providing educational 
information and conducting research into various aspects of investments to and advisory services to members; 
and to act on behalf of members in Court of law, tribunals, conferences and administrative bodies to protect the 
interest of members.

 The registered office address of the association is located at: 7 Maxwell Road, #05-03, MND Building, 
Annexe B, Singapore 069111. The association is situated in Singapore. 

 The Covid-19 pandemic and its aftermath 
 Management has not identified any material uncertainties resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic and the 

aftermath of the pandemic surrounding the association’s business, and accordingly none is disclosed in this 
financial statements.

 Statement of compliance with financial reporting standards
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting 

Standards (“SFRS”) and the related interpretations to SFRS (“INT SFRS”) as issued by the Singapore 
Accounting Standards Council. They are in compliance with the provisions of the Societies Act 1966 and 
Charities Act 1994.

 Accounting convention 
 The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except 

where a financial reporting standard requires an alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed 
where appropriate in these financial statements. The accounting policies in the financial reporting standards 
may not be applied when the effect of applying them is not material. The disclosures required by financial 
reporting standards may not be provided if the information resulting from that disclosure is not material. 

 Basis of preparation of the financial statements
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 

the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apart from those involving estimations, 
management has made judgements in the process of applying the association’s accounting policies. The areas 
requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgements, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 2C below, where applicable.

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 JUNE 2022
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY 
INFORMATION

 
 2A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  Revenue recognition 
  The financial reporting standard on revenue from contracts with customers establishes a five-step 

model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer (which excludes estimates of variable consideration that 
are subject to constraints, such as right of return exists, trade discounts, volume rebates and changes 
to the transaction price arising from modifications), net of any related sales taxes and excluding any 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. An asset (goods or services) is transferred when or as the 
customer obtains control of that asset. As a practical expedient the effects of any significant financing 
component is not adjusted if the payment for the good or service will be within one year.

 (i) Seminars and conference
  Revenue from rendering of services that are of short duration is recognised when the services are 

completed.

 (ii) Sponsorship
  Sponsorship income is recognised upon the association performing an act or service where 

the promise under the contract is for a specificed services that meets the over time criteria 
and revenue is recognised at the amount that the entity has the right to recognise the service 
provided. 

 (iii) Membership fees
  Membership fees for activities held are recognised over the period when the services are 

rendered. Membership fees paid by sponsors for associate sponsored members are recognised 
over the period when the services are rendered. 

 (iv) Donations
  Revenue from donations are accounted for when received, except for committed donations that 

are recognised when the commitments are signed. Donations related to depreciable assets are 
usually recognised in the statement of financial activities over the periods necessary to match the 
depreciation of assets to which the donations relate.

  Other income
  Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 

  Grants
  Government grants and similar non-government grants are recognised at fair value when there is 

reasonable assurance that the conditions attaching to it will be complied with and that the grant will be 
received. Grants and government subvention receipts in recognition of specific expenses are recognised 
as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that they are intended to 
compensate, on a systematic basis. A grant related to depreciable assets is allocated to income over 
the period in which such assets are used in the project subsidised by the grant. A grant related to assets, 
including non-monetary grants at fair value, is presented in the statement of financial position by setting 
up the grant as deferred income. The deferred grants are recognised in the statement of financial 
activities over the period necessary to match the depreciation of assets to which the grants relate.
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  Employee benefits 
  Contributions to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan are recorded as an expense as they fall 

due. The entity’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it agrees to contribute to 
an independently administered fund (such as the Central Provident Fund in Singapore, a government 
managed defined contribution retirement benefit plan). For employee leave entitlement the expected 
cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated absences is recognised in the case 
of accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render service that increases their 
entitlement to future compensated absences; and in the case of non-accumulating compensated 
absences, when the absences occur. A liability for bonuses is recognised where the entity is 
contractually obliged or where there is constructive obligation based on past practice. 

  Income tax 
  As a charity, the association is exempt from tax on income and gains falling within section 13(1)(zm) of 

the Income Tax Act 1947 to extent that these are applied to its charitable objects.

  Foreign currency transactions 
  The functional currency is the Singapore Dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at 
the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting year, recorded monetary 
balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in non-functional currencies 
are reported at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair value measurement dates 
respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profit 
or loss. The presentation is in the functional currency. 

  Plant and equipment
  Plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial recognition at cost less 

any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

  Cost also includes acquisition cost, borrowing cost capitalised and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the asset or component to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Subsequent costs are recognised as an asset only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit 
or loss when they are incurred. 

  Cost includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 
site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired 
or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to 
produce inventories during that period. See Note 17 on non-current provisions. 

  Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the gross carrying amounts of the assets 
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of these assets. The 
annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

  Furniture and equipment  –  20% to 33.3%
  Renovations  –  20% to 33.3%
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  An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that period 
the item is idle. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.

  The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each end of the reporting 
year and, if expectations differ significantly from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as 
a change in an accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current and future periods 
are adjusted. 

  The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of plant and equipment is measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item and is 
recognised in profit or loss.

  Right-of-use assets
  The right-of-use assets are accounted and presented as if they were owned such as plant and 

equipment. The annual rates of amortisation are as follows:

  Premise - Over the term of lease that is 33.3%
  Equipment - Over the term of lease that is 20.0%

  Leases of lessee
  Where a lease arrangement is identified, a liability to the lessor is recognised as a lease obligation 

calculated at the present value of minimum lease payments. A corresponding right-of-use asset is 
recorded. Lease payments are apportioned between finance costs and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to reflect the interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recorded 
as an expense. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of 
the asset and the lease term. Leases with a term of 12 months or less and leases for low value are 
not recorded as a liability and lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

  Carrying amounts of non-financial assets 
  The carrying amount of non-financial assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting year for indications 

of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written down through profit or loss to its estimated 
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable 
amount and is recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit 
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When the fair value less costs of 
disposal method is used, any available recent market transactions are taken into consideration. When 
the value in use method is adopted, in assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). At each end of the reporting year non-financial assets with impairment loss recognised 
in prior periods are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An impairment loss is reversed only 
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been measured, net of depreciation and amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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  Financial instruments
  Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments:

  A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, 
and only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All other 
financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised 
and derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting or settlement date accounting. At initial 
recognition the financial asset or financial liability is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case 
of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. A financial asset 
is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the entity neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial 
asset. A financial liability is removed from the statement of financial position when, and only when, it is 
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

  Classification and measurement of financial assets:

 1. Financial asset classified as measured at amortised cost: A financial asset is measured at amortised 
cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL), that is (a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
assets to collect contractual cash flows; and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. Typically trade and other receivables, bank and cash balances are 
classified in this category.

 2. Financial asset that is a debt asset instrument classified as measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI): There were no financial assets classified in this category at 
reporting year end date. 

 3.  Financial asset that is an equity investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI): There were no financial assets classified in this category at reporting year end date. 

 4. Financial asset classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): There were no 
financial assets classified in this category at reporting year end date. 

  Classification and measurement of financial liabilities:

  Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) in either of the following 
circumstances: (1) the liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis; 
or (2) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise 
arise. All other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Reclassification of any financial liability is not permitted. 
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  Cash and cash equivalents
  Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances and on demand deposits. For the statement 

of cash flows the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to restriction, if any. 

  Fair value measurement
  The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When measuring the fair 
value of an asset or a liability, market observable data to the extent possible is used. If the fair value 
of an asset or a liability is not directly observable, an estimate is made using valuation techniques that 
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs (eg by use 
of the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar items, discounted 
cash flow analysis, or option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances). Inputs 
used are consistent with the characteristics of the asset / liability that market participants would take 
into account. The entity’s intention to hold an asset or to settle or otherwise fulfil a liability is not taken 
into account as relevant when measuring fair value.

  Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the degree to 
which the inputs to the measurement are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety: Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices 
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 fair value measurements are those 
derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie derived from prices). Level 3 fair value measurements 
are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not 
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which the change occurred. 

  The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term 
maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount 
of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. The fair values of non-
current financial instruments may not be disclosed separately unless there are significant differences at 
the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair values are disclosed in the relevant notes to 
the financial statements. 

 2B. OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION
  Provisions
  A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
A provision is made using best estimates of the amount required in settlement and where the effect of 
the time value of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the 
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Changes in estimates are reflected 
in profit or loss in the period they occur. 
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  Funds
  Fund balances restricted by outside sources are so indicated and are distinguished from unrestricted 

funds allocated to specific purposes, if any, by action of the management. Externally restricted funds 
may only be utilised in accordance with the purposes established by the source of such funds or 
through the terms of an appeal and are in contrast with unrestricted funds over which management 
retains full control to use in achieving any of its institutional purposes. An expense resulting from the 
operating activities of a fund that is directly attributable to the fund is charged to that fund. Common 
expenses if any are allocated on a reasonable basis to the funds based on a method most suitable to 
that common expense.

 2C. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES 
There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. There were no key 
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the 
reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.

3. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS
 The financial reporting standard on related party disclosures requires the entity to disclose: (a) transactions 

with its related parties; and (b) relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of whether there 
have been transactions between those related parties. A party is related to a party if the party controls, or is 
controlled by, or can significantly influence or is significantly influenced by the other party.

 A related party includes the Management Committee and key management of the association. It also includes 
an entity or person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common or joint control with 
these persons; members of the key management personnel or close members of the family of any individual 
referred to herein and others who have the ability to control, jointly control or significantly influence by or for 
which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any such individual. 

 It is not the normal practice for the trustees/office bearers, or people connected with them, to receive 
remuneration, or other benefits, from the association for which they are responsible, or from institutions 
connected with the association except as disclosed below.

 3A. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
  The association paid individual expenses incurred by office bearers for services provided to the 

association, either by reimbursement of the office bearer concerned or by direct payment to a third 
party. The aggregate amount of those expenses are as follows:

2022
$

2021
$

Reimbursement of expenses to the 
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

2,115 2,468
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 3B. KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

2022
$

2021
$

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 323,650 323,650

  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly. The above amounts for key 
management compensation is for the Chief Executive Officer.

4. REVENUE

2022
$

2021
$

Investors’ Choice award (1) 25,000 –

Membership fees (2) 611,732 459,051

Seminars and conferences 575,368 122,010

Shareholders’ communication services – 33,146

Sponsorship 333,300 365,400

Donations (Note 4A) 168,700 162,200

Other income 5,000 25

1,719,100 1,141,832

 Revenue is mainly from the rendering of services. About $774,068 (2021: $284,235) is recognised based 
on point in time and the balance is over time. The customers are commercial consumers, individuals and 
government agencies

 (1) The association organised a hybrid Investors’ Choice Award (“ICA”) Presentation Ceremony in the financial 
year 2022 and incurred event and research costs amounting to $114,006.

 The association did not organise the Investors’ Choice Award (“ICA”) Gala Dinner in the financial year  
2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the association incurred research costs for the ICA 
scorecards amounting to $48,500. Also see Note 7.

 (2) The membership fees are income earned from individual paying members amounting to  
$2,982 (2021: $3,218) and corporates paying for associate sponsored members amounting to  
$608,750 (2021: $455,833). 
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4A. DONATIONS

2022
$

2021
$

This item includes the following:

Tax-deductible donations (1) 168,700 161,200

Non-tax-deductible donations – 1,000

Total 168,700 162,200

 (1) The association enjoys a concessionary tax treatment whereby qualifying donors are granted 2.5 times 
tax deduction for the donations made to the association. This status was renewed for 3 years with effect 
from 6 August 2021 under the Charities Act 1994.

5. INTEREST INCOME

2022
$

2021
$

Interest on fixed deposits 1,460 5,900

6. OTHER INCOME

2022
$

2021
$

Government grant – Monetary Authority of Singapore (a) 1,230,000 1,200,000

Government grant – Bicentennial Community Fund (b) – 400,000

Government grant – Jobs Support Scheme (c) 12,179 152,990

Government grants – Others 121,391 102,391

1,363,570 1,855,381

 

 (a) The funding received from the Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS”) is for SIAS Operating Activities, 
subject to terms and conditions set out in the Letter of Offer by MAS. 

 (b) This is a one-off grant from Bicentennial Community Fund to provide greater support to registered IPCs.

 (c) The purpose of the Jobs Support Scheme was to provide wage support to employers to help them retain 
their local employees during this period of economic uncertainty amid Covid-19 for 17 months from April 
2020 to August 2021. The income is recognised over the period where related salary costs are incurred.
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7. SERVICES CONSUMED

2022
$

2021
$

Investors’ Choice award (1) 114,006 48,500

Seminars, courses and conferences 37,097 10,076

Website expenses 19,612 24,807

170,715 83,383

 (1) The association organised a hybrid Investors’ Choice Award (“ICA”) Presentation Ceremony in the 
financial year 2022 and incurred event and research costs costs amounting to $114,006.

  The association did not organise the Investors’ Choice Award (“ICA”) Gala Dinner in the financial year 
2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the association incurred research costs for the ICA 
scorecards amounting to $48,500. 

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

2022
$

2021
$

Salaries and bonuses 1,438,909 1,370,026

Contributions to defined contribution plan 175,556 161,794

Other benefits 2,189 2,213

Total employee benefits expense 1,616,654 1,534,033

9. FINANCE COSTS

2022
$

2021
$

Interest expense on lease liabilities 4,861 7,799
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10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
 The major components and other selected components include the following:

2022
$

2021
$

Advertising and promotion 11,263 2,934

Investor education expenses 47,055 51,208

Research charges (a) 202,400 175,200

 
 (a) Included is $202,400 (2021: $175,200) of research charges expenses relating to the collaboration with 

Singapore Exchange Limited (“SGX”) and Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS”) on the SIAS Analysis of 
Annual Reports (“Project AAR”).

  Project AAR is partially funded by SGX and MAS. The total funding of $233,900 (2021: $204,700) was 
recorded under sponsorship revenue of $183,300 (2021: $162,900) and government grant of $50,600 
(2021: $41,800).

11. INCOME TAX
 The association is registered as a charity with effect from 8 May 2015. Consequently, the association is 

exempt from tax on income and gains falling within section 13(1)(zm) of the Income Tax Act 1947 to the extent 
that these are applied to its charitable objects. No tax charges have arisen on the association. 

FINANCIAL 
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12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 

Furniture and 
equipment

$

Renovation
$

Total
$

COST

At 1 July 2020 92,043 93,594 185,637

Additions 9,797 1,225 11,022

Written off (5,083) – (5,083)

At 30 June 2021 96,757 94,819 191,576

Additions 1,749 – 1,749

At 30 June 2022 98,506 94,819 193,325

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At 1 July 2020 55,857 53,999 109,856

Depreciation for the year 13,406 8,986 22,392

Written off (5,083) – (5,083)

At 30 June 2021 64,180 62,985 127,165

Depreciation for the year 13,870 8,884 22,754

At 30 June 2022 78,050 71,869 149,919

CARRYING VALUE

At 1 July 2020 36,186 39,595 75,781

At 30 June 2021 32,577 31,834 64,411

At 30 June 2022 20,456 22,950 43,406
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13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
 

Premise
$ 

Equipment
$

Total
$

COST

At 1 July 2020, 30 June 2021  
and 30 June 2022

549,935 39,453 589,388

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION

At 1 July 2020 137,024 4,118 141,142

Amortisation for the year 137,637 7,761 145,398

At 30 June 2021 274,661 11,879 286,540

Amortisation for the year 137,637 7,761 145,398

At 30 June 2022 412,298 19,640 431,938

CARRYING VALUE

At 1 July 2020 412,911 35,335 448,246

At 30 June 2021 275,274 27,574 302,848

At 30 June 2022 137,637 19,813 157,450

  
 The leases are for the office premise and equipment. The lease rental terms are negotiated for an average 

term of three to five years. 
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2022
$

2021
$

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Outside parties 500,011 124,450

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Government grant receivables (a) 689,500 76,400

Deposits 38,340 38,340

Others 31 –

Sub-total 727,840 114,740

Total trade and other receivables 1,227,882 239,190

 

 (a) Included in Government grant receivables is accrued receivables of $689,500 (2021: $76,400) from 
Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS”) for SIAS Analysis of Annual Reports (“Project AAR”) and SIAS 
Operating Activities Funding. 

 The association has less than 25 clients which can be graded as low risk individually. Trade receivables 
shown above are subject to the expected credit loss model under the financial reporting standard on 
financial instruments. These trade receivables are considered to have low credit risk individually. At the end 
of the reporting year a loss allowance is recognised at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses 
because there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

 At each subsequent reporting date, an evaluation is made whether there is a significant change in credit risk 
by comparing the debtor’s credit risk at initial recognition (based on the original, unmodified cash flows) with 
the credit risk at the reporting date (based on the modified cash flows). Adjustment to the loss allowance is 
made for any increase or decrease in credit risk.

 There are no collateral held as security and other credit enhancements for the trade receivables.

 As part of the process of setting client credit limits, different credit terms are used. The average credit period 
generally granted to trade receivable clients is about 30 days (2021: 30 days). But some clients take a 
longer period to settle the amounts.
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 At the end of reporting year, trade receivable amounts that are past due but not impaired are as follows:

2022
$

2021
$

Trade receivables: 

1 to 30 days 96,140 –

31 to 60 days – –

More than 60 days 133,750 32,111

Total (1) 229,890 32,111

 
 (1) These amounts have been received after the end of the reporting year. 

 Concentration of trade receivables as at the end of reporting year:

2022
$

2021
$

Top 1 client 107,000 50,000

Top 2 clients 214,000 82,100

Top 3 clients 321,000 107,100

 
 Other receivables are normally with no fixed terms and therefore there is no maturity.

 Other receivables are regarded as of a low credit risk if they have a low risk of default and the debtor has 
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligation in the near term. The methodology applied for 
impairment loss depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. No loss allowance is 
deemed necessary as at the reporting year end.

15. OTHER ASSET
2022

$
2021

$

Prepayments 19,484 10,190
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022
$

2021
$

Not restricted in use 1,676,236 1,831,703

Restricted in use – 5,000

1,676,236 1,836,703

Interest earning balances 911,435 418,026

 The rate of interest for the cash on interest earning balances was between 0.20% to 0.70% (2021: 0.15% to 
0.70%) per annum.

 
16A. Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flow

2022
$

2021
$

Amount as shown above 1,676,236 1,836,703

Cash restricted in use – (5,000)

Cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash flows 
purpose at the end of the reporting year 

1,676,236 1,831,703

 

17. OTHER LIABILITIES, NON-CURRENT

2022
$

2021
$

Provision for restoration cost 38,000 38,000

 
 The provision is based on quotations from external contractors for removing leasehold improvements from 

leased properties.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022
$

2021
$

Outside parties and accrued liabilities 260,927 223,196

19. OTHER LIABILITIES, CURRENT

2022
$

2021
$

Deferred income (Note 19A) 233,561 85,004

Deferred government grant – 12,178

Total 233,561 97,182

 
19A. Deferred income

2022
$

2021
$

Unutilised funds from:

Associate sponsored membership 210,417 69,167

Others 23,144 15,837

Total deferred income 233,561 85,004

2022
$

2021
$

Movement in above balance:

Balance at beginning of the year 85,004 91,775

Received / receivable during the year 1,696,790  721,199

Utilised during the year (1,548,233) (727,970)

Balance at end of the year 233,561 85,004

 The movements of deferred revenue relates to sponsorship for shareholder communication program and 
investor education program and associate sponsored membership. The income is recognised over the 
sponsorship and/or membership period.
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20. LEASE LIABILITIES

2022
$

2021
$

LEASE LIABILITIES 148,164 145,164

Current 15,291 163,455

Non-current 163,455 308,619

 Movements in lease liabilities are as follows:

2022
$

2021
$

Balance at the beginning of the year 308,619 450,845

Accretion of interest 4,861 7,799

COVID-19 related rent concession – (11,871)

Lease payments – principal portion paid (145,164) (130,355)

Interest expense paid (4,861) (7,799)

Balance at the end of the year 163,455 308,619

 
 The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised is 2% to 3% 

(2021: 2% to 3%) per annum.

 A summary of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities tis disclosed in Note 21E.

 Total cash outflows for leases are shown in the statement of cash flows.

 There were no future cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that are not reflected in the 
measurement of lease liabilities above. At reporting year date there were no commitments on leases which 
had not yet commenced.

 The total for lease liabilities and the average effective borrowing rate per year is disclosed above. The fair 
value (Level 2) is a reasonable approximation of the carrying amount. 
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS
21A. Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 The following table categorises the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities 

recorded at the end of the reporting year:

2022
$

2021
$

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At amortised cost 2,904,118 2,075,893

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At amortised cost 424,382 531,815

 
 Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

21B. Financial risk management
 The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the finances for 

the association’s operating, investing and financing activities. There are exposure to the financial risks 
on the financial instruments such as credit risk and liquidity risk. Management has certain practices for 
the management of financial risks. However these are not documented in formal written documents. 
The following guidelines are followed: All financial risk management activities are carried out and 
monitored by senior management staff. All financial risk management activities are carried out 
following acceptable market practices. 

 There have been no changes to exposure to risk; objectives, policies and processes for managing the 
risk and the methods used to measure the risk.

 The association is not exposed to significant interest rate and foreign currency risks.

21C. Fair values of financial instruments
 The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, 

grouped into Levels 1 to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. These include 
both the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost and at fair value in the statement of 
financial position. The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due 
to the short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the 
carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value

21D. Credit risk on financial assets

 Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by 
counterparties to discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner. These arise principally from 
cash balances with banks, cash equivalents, receivables and other financial assets. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is the total of the fair value of the financial assets at the end of the reporting 
year. Credit risk on cash balances with banks and any other financial instruments is limited because 
the counter-parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. For expected credit losses (ECL) on 
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financial assets, the general approach (three-stage approach) in the financial reporting standard on 
financial instruments is applied to measure the impairment allowance. Under this general approach 
the financial assets move through the three stages as their credit quality changes. On initial 
recognition, a day-1 loss is recorded equal to the 12 month ECL unless the assets are considered 
credit impaired. However, the simplified approach (that is, to measure the loss allowance at an 
amount equal to lifetime ECL at initial recognition and throughout its life) permitted by the financial 
reporting standards on financial instruments is applied for financial assets that do not have a 
significant financing component, such as trade receivables. For credit risk on trade receivables and 
other financial assets an ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of the 
debtors and an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Reviews and assessments of credit 
exposures in excess of designated limits are made. Renewals and reviews of credits limits are subject 
to the same review process.

 Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of the standard on 
financial instruments. There was no identified impairment loss.

21E. Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis 

 The liquidity risk refers to the difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It is expected that all the liabilities will be 
settled at their contractual maturity. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is 
about 30 days (2021: 30 days). The other payables are with short-term durations. The classification 
of the financial assets is shown in the statement of financial position as they may be available to meet 
liquidity needs and no further analysis is deemed necessary.

 The association monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed 
adequate by management to finance the association’s operations and to mitigate the effects of 
fluctuations in cash flows

 The following table analyses the non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity 
(contractual undiscounted cash flows): 

 Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Less than 
1 year

$

1 – 5 years
$

Total
$

2022

Gross lease liabilities 150,015 15,710 165,725

Trade and other payables 260,927 − 260,927

At end of the year 410,942 15,710 426,652

2021

Gross lease liabilities 150,014 165,725 315,739

Trade and other payables 223,196 − 223,196

At end of the year 373,210 165,725 538,935
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22. FUND ACCOUNT TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 

2022 2021

Unrestricted 
Funds 

General 
Fund

$

Restricted 
Fund

SIAS 
Operating 
Activities 

Fund
$

Total
$

Total
$

(i) (ii)

Revenue 1,719,100 – 1,719,100 1,141,832

Interest income 1,460 – 1,460 5,900

Other income 133,570 1,230,000 1,363,570 1,855,381

1,854,130 1,230,000 3,084,130 3,003,113

Items of expenditure

Services consumed (170,715) – (170,715) (83,383)

Depreciation expense (22,754) – (22,754) (22,392)

Amortisation expense (145,398) – (145,398) (145,398)

Employee benefits expense (391,654) (1,225,000) (1,616,654) (1,534,033)

Finance costs (4,861) – (4,861) (7,799)

Other operating expenses (471,578) (10,000) (481,578) (335,289)

(1,206,960) (1,235,000) (2,441,960) (2,128,294)

Net income before tax 647,170 (5,000) 642,170 874,819

Income tax expense – – – –

Net income for the year 647,170 (5,000) 642,170 874,819
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2022 2021

Unrestricted 
Funds

Restricted 
Fund

General 
Fund

$

SIAS 
Operating 
Activities 

Fund
$

Total
$

Total
$

(i) (ii)

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment 43,406 – 43,406 64,411

Right-of-use assets 157,450 – 157,450 302,848

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 1,227,882 – 1,227,882 239,190

Other assets 19,484 – 19,484 10,190

Cash and cash equivalents 1,676,236 – 1,676,236 1,836,703

Total assets 3,124,458 – 3,124,458 2,453,342

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 15,291 – 15,291 163,455

Other liabilities, non-current 38,000 – 38,000 38,000

Current liabilities

Lease liabilities 148,164 – 148,164 145,164

Trade and other payables 260,927 – 260,927 223,196

Other liabilities, current 233,561 – 233,561 97,182

Total liabilities 695,943 – 695,943 666,997

Net assets 2,428,515 – 2,428,515 1,786,345

 (i) General Fund - this represents cumulative surpluses available for general use for the furtherance of the 
association’s objectives.

 (ii) SIAS Operating Activities Fund - this fund is subject to the terms and conditions set out in the Letter 
of Offer by Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS”). This funding shall be used only in respect of the 
qualifying expenses for the direct benefit of the SIAS Operating Activities, whether incurred in Singapore 
or outside Singapore. Qualifying expenses refer to association’s manpower costs and external auditor’s fee 
incurred for the certification of qualifying expenses.
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23. RESERVE POLICY
 The reserves of the association provide financial stability and the means for the development of the 

association’s activities. The association has a target reserve ratio of one (1) and will strive to work towards 
this ratio by engaging in approved activities that are accretive to its bottom line. The Management 
Committee reviews the level of reserves regularly for the association’s continuing obligations.

2022
$

2021
$

Total unrestricted funds 2,428,515 1,781,345

Ratio of reserves to total operating expenditure 0.99 0.84

 
24. CHANGES AND ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
 For the current reporting year certain new or revised financial reporting standards were issued by the 

Singapore Accounting Standards Council. None of these are applicable to the reporting entity for the 
current reporting year.

25. NEW OR AMENDED STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
 For the future reporting years, certain new or revised financial reporting standards were issued by the 

Singapore Accouting Standards Council and these will only be effective for future reporting years. Those 
applicable to the association for future reporting years are listed velow. The transfer to the applicable new 
or revised standards from the effective dates is not expected to result in any significant modification of the 
measurement methods or the presentation in the financial statements for the following year from the known 
or reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the possible impact that application of the new or 
revised standards may have on the association’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

SFRS No. Title

Effective date for 
periods beginning 

on or after

SFRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use – 
Amendments 

1 Jan 2022

SFRS 109 Financial Instruments – Fees in the “10 per cent” test for 
derecognition of financial liabilities (Annual Improvement Project)

1 Jan 2022

Various Annual Improvements to SFRSs 2018 - 2020 1 Jan 2022 

SFRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Amendment relating to 
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

1 Jan 2023

SFRS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendments 1 Jan 2023

Various Amendments to SFRS 1 and SFRS Practice Statement 2: 
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1 Jan 2023

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)
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OUR
DONORS

List of Donation Records from 01/07/2021 to 30/06/2022.

ORGANISATIONS 

ABS BENCHMARKS ADMINISTRATION CO PTE LTD $100,000 

AP OIL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED $2,500 

MICRO-MECHANICS $2,500 

OUE LIMITED $2,500 

RSM CHIO LIM LLP $20,000 

SINGHAIYI GROUP LTD $2,500 

THAKRAL CORPORATION LTD $5,000 

ANONYMOUS $2,500 

INDIVIDUALS

STEPHEN CHEN $1,000

TEO TONG HOW $10,000 

ANONYMOUS $20,200 

TOTAL $168,700 
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SUMMARY OF 
EVENTS
JULY 2021 TO JUNE 2022
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1 Jul Singpost Pre-AGM

1 Jul Introduction to Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs)

3 Jul Financial Analysis: Evaluate Financial Statements (Part 1-3)

5 Jul SIAS Weekly Review on Market

5 Jul SIAS Q&A with Eagle Hospitality Trust (EHT) - Pre-recorded

6 Jul Corporate Connect

12 Jul SIAS Weekly Review on Market

15 Jul Mata-Bytes: Cryptocurrency/Scams

19 Jul SIAS Weekly Review on Market

19 Jul SIAS – Singtel Virtual Dialogue Session 

21 Jul ASK SIAS

22 Jul Introduction to Leveraged Products 

26 Jul SIAS Weekly Review on Market

27 Jul Corporate Connect

28 Jul SIAS-CAPITALAND Virtual Dialogue Session

29 Jul Market Outlook - How to profit from the future?

2 Aug SIAS Weekly Review on Market

6 Aug SIAS - Sembcorp Marine Virtual Dialogue Session 

10 Aug SIAS Weekly Review on Market

11 Aug ASK SIAS

16 Aug SIAS Weekly Review on Market

17 Aug Corporate Connect

18 Aug Understanding Analysts’ Reports and Recommendations (Part 1-2)

23 Aug SIAS Weekly Review on Market

25 Aug Keppel Corporation Virtual Meeting for Retail Shareholders

26 Aug SIAS-SPH Dialogue Session

30 Aug SIAS Weekly Review on Market

31 Aug Corporate Connect

2 Sep Basics of Financial Statement Analysis 

6 Sep SIAS Weekly Review on Market

8 Sep ASK SIAS

9 Sep NTU-IIC Welcome Night - The Basics to Investing

13 Sep SIAS Weekly Review on Market

15 Sep Introduction to Fixed Income (Bonds)

20 Sep SIAS Weekly Review on Market

22 Sep Corporate Connect

27 Sep SIAS Weekly Review on Market

SUMMARY OF 
EVENTS
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SUMMARY OF 
EVENTS

4 Oct SIAS Weekly Review on Market

11 Oct SIAS Weekly Review on Market

11 Oct Corporate Governance Conference

12 Oct SIAS Investors’ Choice Awards Presentation Ceremony 

13 Oct Corporate Governance Workshop 1 (Digital)

14 Oct Corporate Governance Workshop 2 (Digital)

15 Oct Corporate Governance Workshop 3 (Digital)

18 Oct SIAS Weekly Review on Market

18 Oct Investor Forum (Part of CGW)

20 Oct ASK SIAS

21 Oct Corporate Connect

25 Oct SIAS Weekly Review on Market

29 Oct SIAS AGM

1 Nov SIAS Weekly Review on Market

8 Nov SIAS Weekly Review on Market

9 Nov Corporate Connect

10 Nov Understanding Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) for Investing (Exclusive to New 
SIAS Members Only)

12 Nov SIAS – SingPost Virtual Pre-EGM

15 Nov Introduction to SPACs

15 Nov SIAS Weekly Review on Market

17 Nov ASK SIAS

18 Nov Fireside chat with ESR REIT and ARA Logos (Pre-recorded)

22 Nov SIAS Weekly Review on Market: SPACs in Singapore - A Look at SGX SPACs

22 Nov SIAS - Keppel DC REIT Virtual Dialogue Session

23 Nov Corporate Connect

24 Nov Advanced Technical Analysis (Part 1 - 2) - New

29 Nov SIAS Weekly Review on Market: SPACs in Singapore - Demystifying Potential Pitfalls

30 Nov Keppel Corporation Virtual Dialogue Session

6 Dec SIAS Weekly Review on Market

9 Dec Corporate Connect

13 Dec SIAS Weekly Review on Market

15 Dec ASK SIAS

17 Dec Digesting Stewardship, ESG and Governance

20 Dec SIAS Weekly Review on Market
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3 Jan SIAS Weekly Review on Market

10 Jan SIAS Weekly Review on Market

13 Jan SIAS – ESR-REIT Virtual Dialogue Session 

14 Jan SIAS – ARA LOGOS Virtual Dialogue Session 

16 Jan SPAC IPO Briefing with VTAC 

17 Jan SIAS Weekly Review on Market: Market Outlook

18 Jan Introduction to SPACs

18 Jan Corporate Connect

19 Jan SIAS-OUE Lippo Healthcare Shareholders’ Dialogue Session

20 Jan SIAS-First REIT Virtual Dialogue Session

24 Jan SIAS Weekly Review on Market

26 Jan ASK SIAS

3 Feb SIAS Fireside Chat with ARA LOGOS Logistics Trust (Pre-Recorded)

3 Feb SIAS Fireside Chat with ESR REIT (Pre-Recorded)

7 Feb SIAS Weekly Review on Market

9 Feb SIAS-Olam International Virtual Information Session 

14 Feb SIAS Weekly Review on Market

15 Feb Corporate Connect

16 Feb ASK SIAS

17 Feb SYC Welcome Night: Asset Allocation

21 Feb SIAS Weekly Review on Market

22 Feb Corporate Connect

24 Feb SIAS-Lendlease Global Commercial REIT Virtual Information Session

25 Feb The New Waves of Shareholder Engagement in Singapore

28 Feb Investor Forum: Deep Dive into the “Dos & Don’ts” in Investing in SPACs

28 Feb SIAS Weekly Review on Market

1 Mar Basics of Financial Statement Analysis 

7 Mar SIAS Weekly Review on Market

9 Mar SIAS-ALOG Virtual Information Session

10 Mar SIAS-ESR-REIT Virtual Information Session

11 Mar SIAS-SPH Virtual Information Session

14 Mar SIAS Weekly Review on Market

15 Mar Corporate Connect

19 Mar Toa Payoh East Financial Talk - Cryptocurrency: What are the Risk? 

21 Mar SIAS Weekly Review on Market

23 Mar ASK SIAS

24 Mar Introduction to SPACs

28 Mar SIAS Weekly Review on Market

29 Mar Corporate Connect

SUMMARY OF 
EVENTS
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SUMMARY OF 
EVENTS

4 Apr SIAS Weekly Review on Market

6 Apr SIAS-CapitaLand China Trust (CLCT) Virtual Company Meeting

6 Apr SIAS-Keppel Infrastucture Trust Virtual Company Meeting

7 Apr Introduction to Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)

11 Apr SIAS Weekly Review on Market

12 Apr SIAS-CapitaLand Integrated Commercial Trust (CICT)  Virtual Company Meeting 

12 Apr Corporate Connect

14 Apr SIAS-Sabana Industrial REIT Virtual Dialogue Session

18 Apr SIAS Weekly Review on Market

19 Apr SIAS-Ascott Residence Trust (ART) Virtual Company Meeting

20 Apr SIAS-Kopi with CapitaLand Investment 

21 Apr Introduction to SPACs

25 Apr SIAS Weekly Review on Market

27 Apr ASK SIAS

29 Apr Corporate Connect

9 May SIAS Weekly Review on Market

9 May SIAS-Mapletree North Asia Commercial Trust (MNACT) Virtual Information Session

10 May SIAS-Mapletree Commercial Trust (MCT) Virtual Information Session

10 May Corporate Connect

12 May Introduction to SPACs

23 May SIAS Weekly Review on Market

24 May Corporate Connect

25 May ASK SIAS

30 May SIAS Weekly Review on Market

6 Jun SIAS Weekly Review on Market

13 Jun SIAS Weekly Review on Market

14 Jun Corporate Connect

15 Jun ASK SIAS

16 Jun Introduction to SPACs

20 Jun SIAS Weekly Review on Market

20 Jun SIAS-Sembcorp Marine Dialogue Session 

21 Jun Investor Forum: Are shareholders responsible for good corporate governance and success of 
listed companies?

22 Jun Portfolio Creation and Asset Allocation for Long Term Wealth (Part 1 & 2)

24 Jun SIAS-Frasers Hospitality Trust Fireside chat (Pre-recorded)

27 Jun SIAS Weekly Review on Market

28 Jun Corporate Connect
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SECURITIES INVESTORS ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)
7 Maxwell Road #05-03, 
MND Building Annexe B, 
Singapore 069111

E admin@sias.org.sg
T +65 6227 2683
F +65 6220 6614


